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The National Trust of Australia (NT)
acknowledges the Traditional Owners of country
throughout the Northern Territory and recognize
their continuing connection to land, water and
culture. We pay our respects to their Elders past,
present and emerging.
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National Trust

Northern Territory

INTRODUCTION

The National Trust of Australia (NT) is a non-for-profit,
incorporated by the National Trust (Northern Territory) Act
1976.

"...properties are what the Trust

is most well-known for, the
organisation has served the
Territory.... to deliver outcomes
in line with its purposes.”

The National Trust of Australia (NT) manages 15 properties
across the Northern Territory. Funds are raised for the
ongoing maintenance of properties and/or furthering the
purposes of the Trust. While these properties are what the
Trust is most well-known for, the organisation has served the
Territory by collecting and creating archives, registers of
significant places and vegetation as well as partnering with
other Government Agencies and not-for-profit organisations
to deliver outcomes in line with its purposes.

This annual report serves as an overview of activities
undertaken by the National Trust of Australia (NT) during
the 2020 calendar year and the first half of 2021. On 11 May
2020 a decision was made to shift financial reporting from
calendar year to financial year.

An audit for the period of 2021 January - June has been
included as a part of this report. This means that the next
annual report will cover the activity and finances of the
financial year 2021/22.
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ACTIVITIES

The year 2020 was characterised by a number of
traumatic events from natural disasters, pandemics,
shut downs, job losses and isolation. No individual or
organsiation was immune and most have been happy
to wave the year goodbye.

At the National Trust of Australia (NT) Covid-19 had a
particularly poignant impact on our operations and
activities.

Aided significantly by economic stimulus from all
levels of government, we were able to seize an
opportunity to undertake an ambitious building
program. Government funding enabled the Trust to
complete a number of outstanding repairs and
maintenance projects and focus on renewal and future
opportunities for education, advocacy and cultural
preservation.

We restructured our membership and expanded our
member benefits. We opened a gift store that focuses
on products made from NT materials or by Territorians
and ran education events and functions such as panel
discussions on architecture and a number of art
exhibitions.

A lot of focus went into positioning the organisation for
2021 with behind the scenes work to establish guided
tours, events, physical works and education programs.

The period of January - June 2021 demonstrates the
benefits reaped from the work of 2020. In this period,
the organisation experienced significant upswings in
visitors to properties across the Territory, held
numerous sold out events including during Heritage
Week celebrations (staggered across the Territory in
April/May) and worked with a number of like-minded
organisations for the betterment of the Territory
including COOLmob, NT Stolen Generations, Friends of
Kahlin and more.



LOOKING TO
THE FUTURE

In 2020 the National Trust of Australia endorsed the
2021-24 Strategic Plan.

The Strategic Plan is the guiding document of the
organisation, making clear what the organisational
priorities and ethos are. Of significance is the renewed
focus on the organisation's raison d'étre, with
advocacy, public participation and education featuring
as goals.

The clear articulation of the vision and mission of the
organisation helps to bond the work we do to our
purpose and to create a tagline that succinctly conveys
what we do.

Vision
Preserving, maintaining and promoting our natural,
cultural and intangible heritage.

Mission
Educate and advocate for historical places, the
environment and cultural practices of the Northern
Territory.

Reporting against key performance indicators

commenced in 2021. Bi-annual reports on progress
and performance against key performance indicators
will be presented to the Council of the National Trust of
Australia (NT) and annually reported against as a part
of future annual reports.




NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (NT) STRATEGIC PLAN 2021-2024

Cur vision

Preserving, maintaining and promoting our natural, cultural and intangible heritage.

Cur mission

Educate and advocate for historical places, the environment and cultural

practices of the Northem Territory

Cur values

= Respect: We serve, support, and uphold the dignity of our community
= Excellence: We strive to deliver outstanding service, visitor experiences, and

best practice heritage outcomes

+» Iniegrty: We are honest, ethical, and accountable as an organisation,
individuals, and as heritage custodians
Inspiration: We inspire others to value heritage
Collaboration: We form meaningful and inclusive parinerships with others that

share our vision

STRATEGIC
GOALS

KEY PRIORITIES

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS |

1. Advocate for
the
recognition
and protection
of the
Territory’'s
natural,
cultural and
intangible
heritage

1.1 Influence legislative and planning
changes io protect the Territory’s
natural and cultural heritage.

1.2 Presemnve, document and interpret our
properties and collections.

1.3 Increase the knowledge and capacity of
grassroots advocacy in the community.

i. Increase formal
cormmespondence and
submissions on natural,
cultural and intangible hertage
matters.

i. Increase representation of
MNTNT members on relevant
boards, committees and
decision-making bodies.

iii.  NTNT's collections, asseis
and archives are documented,
maintained and accessible.

iv.  Information and support are
provided fo grassroots and
community initiatives.

v. Acknowlzdge Indigenous
culture in signage, information
and education.

vi. Improve goodwil and public
perception.

2. Diversify and
increass
public
participation
and visitor
experisnce

2.1 Provide products and services io
increase value and accessibility for
the community.

2.2 Develop and deliver engaging and
innovative, interpretative and
education experiences that promote
cultural diversity.

2.3 Engage with local, intersiate and
intermational audiences to diversify and
increase pariicipation.

2 4 Utilise innovative methods to improve
advocacy, marketing, communication
and reach.

2.5 Collaborate with people and
organisations with the same goals as
the NTNT.

2.6 Diversify engagement with cultural
communities.

i. Increased number of products
and experiences.

ii. Increased participation and
diversity.

iil.  Anengagement strategy informs
the development and delivery of
interpretive and education
experiences.

iv. Develop a communications
strategy to improve advocacy,
marketing, communication and
reach.

¥. NTNT information and
interpretation available in other
languages.

vi. Increase focus on supporting
Indigenous aspirations.




. Aftain financial

sustainability
and
independence

3.1 Leverage properties and assets to
raise funds through sponsorship and
partnerships.

3.2 Increase focus on a long-term
program of fundraising activities
and events.

3.3 Integrate purchasing and

Demonstrate an increass of
revenue year on year.

Increased number of
parinerships which raise funds.

Activities and events that
increase revenue.

businesses.

contracting arrangements fo iv. A fundraising gtrategyfpoliw to
reduce costs and improve supplier support and align Branch
performance. fundraising.

3.4 Diversify and increase income V. Administration costs reduced as
streams to support sustainability a percentage of expenditure.
and advocate for appropriate : )
resourcing of the NTNT, vi. F'roc.urement policy developed

and implemented.
4. Build capacity 4 1 Strengthen governance through i. Sirategies and policies are
in business strategic and business planning and implemented and evaluated.
B e ii. Implement an annual Board

4.2 Consistent practice and decision- Review.
making across the NTNT through iii. Create and implement a
policies and procedures. fraining strategy that

addresses the needs of

4 3 Be innovative and agile, identifying Council, members, volunteers
and capitalising on local and and staff.
interstate opporiunities ) _

iv. Increase business

4 4 Increase and develop professional Lt
capability for staff, volunteers and
council.

. Implement 5.1 Champion the use and purchase of Preferencing NT businesses
environmentally local products and artists. and suppliers when viable.
sustainable . .
business 5.2 Use energy efficient systems and il GFEE]tE and implement an
practices and practices. environmental strategy that
support local reduces waste to landfill, water

consumption and energy use.




THE HERITAGE
PROPERTIES

Audit House

Designed by the Commonwealth Department of
Works, this B Type House was erected in 1938.
Substantial damage was suffered during Cyclone
Tracey and the interior of the property has been
modified. The property forms part of the Myilly Point
Heritage Precinct and is located at 2 Burnett Place,
Larrakeyah.

Audit House serves primarily as the headquarters and
administration centre of the National Trust of Australia
(NT). The property is open to the public and is the
setting for a number of arts and cultural events run by
the Trust. A small gift shop is housed in the building
and guided tours of the precinct include a visit to this
dwelling. The house and adjacent garden is available
for private functions and events after hours.

During the reporting period renovations have been
undertaken at the house with all interior walls painted.
New fans and lights and a picture hanging system have
been installed.



Burnett House | i //,/AR

Arguably the most well known of the National Trust’'s
properties in Darwin, Burnett House forms part of the
Myilly Point Heritage Precinct and is located at 4
Burnett Place, Larrakeyah. Desighed by Beni Burnett
and built in 1938 it is a type K house.

The house and gardens are open to the public Monday
- Saturday from 10 am -1 pm and is regularly used after
hours for events including the Trust’s Devonshire Teas
and speaker events. The surrounding garden is a
popular venue and is regularly hired out for private
events and parties. In the period January - June 2021,
guided tours of the House and surrounding precinct
area attracted 391 people.

During the reporting period new fans have been
installed in Burnett House. The lawns of the
surrounding garden have been re-levelled and new
turf laid and security lighting installed.

Mines House

The property forms part of the Myilly Point Heritage
Precinct and is located at 6 Burnett Place, Larrakeyah.
Constructed in 1939 the property is a type “E” Burnett
House. It is used for commercial leasing.




Magistrates House

The property forms part of the Myilly Point Heritage
Precinct and is located at 2 Kahlin Avenue, Larrakeyah.
Magistrates House is also a type “E” Burnett House. It is
used for commercial leasing.

During the reporting period the Trust received a
Heritage Grant of $12,800 from the NT Government to
remediate window frames and fix internal walls to
enable for efficient air-conditioning of the house. A
tamarind tree that had been deemed dangerous was
removed and a broken sewer pipe was replaced.

Stahl Block

This property forms part of the Myilly Point Heritage
Precinct and is a vacant lot located at 4 Kahlin Avenue,
Larrakeyah. The former dwelling located on the
allotment was lost as a result of Cyclone Tracey. The
footprint of the dwelling has been recreated using
stone pavers, providing a multipurpose hard standing
area that can be used for events. Power has also been
provided to the allotment with lights and power
outlets allowing for numerous uses to take place.

Myilly Point Heritage Precinct

New footpaths were constructed through the gardens
at the Myilly Point Heritage Precinct, a storm water
management plan was completed for the amenities
building at the back of Audit House and repairs were
carried out on the fences.

Light poles and floodlights were installed to facilitate
events after hours.



Roadmasters House

Constructed in the 1920s, this building is one of the few
examples left of a pre-war house with a slatted/lattice
verandah. It was built to accommodate staff from the
North Australia Railway until the building was
damaged by Cyclone Tracy in 1974. The site was then
leased by the Crown to the Catholic Church’s Stella
Maris organisation for use as a seafarers recreation
centre. The lease was surrendered in 2005 when the
building was heritage listed and restored to its original
condition.

In July 2016 the National Trust was granted a 10-year
Crown lease over the building for use as a museum.
The museum currently houses an exhibition entitled
“Old Darwin, the Overland Telegraph and the Railway”
that covers aspects of Darwin’s history. The museum is
at 1 McMinn Street and open to the public10 am -1 pm
five days a week from February to the end of October.

Due to prolonged Covid-19 restrictions the museum
was open for 99 days over the 18-month reporting
period when 557 visitors were recorded. As most
visitors are from interstate the numbers were affected
by the Covid-19 situation across the country.




Pine Creek Railway Precinct

This property includes several built structures
including the railway station, goods shed, employee
residence and water tank. As the terminus of the North
Australian Railway, this station was a focal point of the
development and economy of Pine Creek. The precinct

is open during the Dry Season, seven days a week from
10am-1pm.

During this reporting period the Trust received a
Heritage Grant of $18,213 from the NT Government to
replace guttering, repair facia boards, upgrade the
ablutions and install a new hot water system and a
pipeline at the Railway Employee's Residence.

Pine Creek Museum

Originally the Mining Warden'’s office in Burrundie, this
prefabricated building was relocated to Pine Creek in
1913. Over the years it has been a hospital as well as a
repeater station for the overland telegraph. The
National Trust has established a mining museum
inside and Victoria Daly Regional Council operates a
library from the same facility. The museum is open
daily during the Dry Season.

During this reporting period electrical repairs and
Mmaintenance were carried out at the site.



O’Keefe House

Originally an army recreation hut built in 1942, this
property is one of the few surviving structures in
Katherine built during the war. This property is used as
a museum and houses the bulk of the National Trust’s
furniture collection. A 1934 Sidney Williams Hut is also
located on site surround by beautiful gardens. The
Sidney Williams Hut houses a historical display on how
the war affected the Katherine Region. Due to Covid
situation and the age of our volunteers, O’'Keeffe House
only opened for functions in 2020 and local plant sales.
In 2021 O’'Keeffe House opened its doors on Wednesday
and Saturdays from May - September, May-June 2021
saw 82 visitors. Eight events were held in the reporting
period including launching a Christmas Lights Display
attracting 134 adults and 53 children in December
2020.

During the reporting period plumbing works were
carried out and a new hot water system was installed.

-




Old Katherine Railway

Built in 1926 due to the extension of the railway, this
building is unique in the Northern Territory as it is built
from prefabricated reinforced concrete slabs. During
WWII, the headquarters of the North Australian
Railway was briefly located here. Today, the property is
managed by the Katherine Branch of the National
Trust. It houses the Katherine Railway Museum, a book
exchange and the 1892 steam train which was
relocated from Ryan Park to the Railway Station in
December 2020. Due to Covid and limited volunteer
availability these premises only opened for August
2020 with 17 visitors. In 2021 the premises opened each
Wednesday 8.30 - 11.30 am from May to September,
attracting 42 visitors.

During the reporting period a Heritage Grant of $7,540
was received from the NT Government for a covering
structure to protect the 1923 Fordson Tractor on display
within the grounds of the Katherine Railway Station.
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Old Borroloola Police Station

The Borroloola Police Station is one of the oldest
surviving Police Stations in the Northern Territory,
initially constructed in 1887. The Police and Army
during WWII operated from the building until 1947
when the police presence was discontinued. Since that
time the building has been a health clinic, welfare
depot, education centre and provided accommodation
for government employees. 1n 1985 the centenary year
for the proclamation of the township of Borroloola the
building was included in the NT Heritage Register for
preservation and management by the National Trust
NT. The building is open all year round with an onsite
caretaker who opens the museum daily. Keys are also
available from a number of local business houses.
There were approximately 4,500 visitors to the old
police station

During the reporting period the Trust received a
Heritage Grant of $5,210 for conservation work on the
slab of the Cell Block and $15,000 from the McArthur
River Mine Community Benefits Fund for fencing,
security lighting and replacement of storage
cupboards.




Jones Store

Originally built in 1935, this building has been utilised
as a store, bakery, butchers shop, fuel depot and
saddlery in the historic town of Newcastle Waters. The
building is one of the few remaining examples of
buildings of this era constructed from bush materials
with mud walls and compacted antbed floors. Jones
Store became an important supply depot for droving
plants utilising the converging stock routes Murranji,
Barkly and North South. Visitation is unrestricted.

A considerable amount of structural maintenance has
been undertaken in the past few years. The National
Trust continues to liaise with relevant parties including
Mates of The Murranji to promote the heritage of
remote NT properties.



Tuxworth Fullwood House

The last remaining building associated with the
original Tennant Creek Hospital; this property was
originally desighed by Beni Burnett and built in 1942 as
a WWII Army Camp Hospital which was handed over to
the civilian health system after the war as an
outpatients’ facility. Saved from demolition in 1978, the
property was taken over by the National Trusts and
serves as the Tennant Creek headquarters of the
organisation housing numerous artefacts and records.
The building was opened as a museum in August 1980.
It was closed for a number of years prior to a new
volunteer committee being formed in November 2019.

The museum was re-opened in August 2020
coinciding with its 40th birthday as a Museum of the
National Trust. In the lead up to the reopening branch
members worked hard to clean up the interior of the
building and revamp the display. The museum features
displays on the hospital, mining and social history of
Tennant Creek.

It is open every Monday 5-7 pm or by special
arrangement with the Tennant Creek Branch.

In 2021 Tuxworth Fullwood House hosted two
researchers accessing the extensive archives of the
museum for their history projects.

During the reporting period a new picture hanging
system was installed with a generous donation of more
than $3,000 from the Rotary E Club. A disabled toilet
block was completed in June 2020 with a $30,000
grant from the Community Benefit Fund NT.




NN\

ARNRRRINR R

Stuart Town Gaol

Built in 1907, the Stuart Town Gaol is the oldest
surviving building in the Alice Springs Town Centre.
The building was an operational gaol until 1939, when a
new facility was built. Saved from demolition in the
1970s, the National Trust restored the building and
created a museum display of memorabilia and stories
relating to the police history and life in Central
Australia.

Unattended, this facility can be accessed five days a
week, with visitors able to collect the key from the
Hartley Street School.

Hartley Street School

Built in segments from 1930 onwards, the Hartley
Street School was the first government school in Alice
Springs. Converted from a school in 1965 to
government offices until 1980 when it was planned to
be demolished. Community support saw the building
saved, restored and reopened in 1988 as a museum of
education. The National Trust’'s McDouall Stuart Branch
operates out of this property. Original education
furniture of the era is held at this property. The
property is open throughout the dry season and on
Sundays which coincide with the Todd Mall Markets.



Les Hansen House

Designed by Beni Burnett and constructed in 1942,
this property originally served as the Air Masters
residence until 1978 when it was transferred to the
Northern Territory Housing Commission. Restored in
1983, it is one of the only houses in Alice Springs
Heritage Precinct that still retains all of its original
outbuildings. The house was closed for an extended
period of time but is now used for commercial
leasing.

During the reporting period a Heritage Grant of
$4,762 was received from the NT Government to
repaint the exterior of the house.
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HERITAGE
COUNCIL

The Northern Territory (NT) Heritage Council has been
set up to provide advice to the Northern Territory
Government on matters affecting the Territory's
cultural and natural heritage.

The Heritage Council operates under the Heritage Act
2011. The Act sets out the functions and powers of the
Council.

There are 11 members on the Heritage Council, and a
nominee of the National Trust of Australia (NT) retains a
permanent seat on the Council.

With the resignation of former Director, Tim Dixon in
February 2020; the Trust was without an endorsed
nominee for all meetings conducted during 2020. A
representative from the organisation did attend
meetings in an observer capacity.

In 2021, Director Grace Foulds was accepted by the
Minister as the National Trust of Australia (NT)'s
representative.

Details on the activities and function of the Heritage
Council can be found through the NT Heritage
Council's webpage: https://tfhc.nt.gov.au/heritage,-
libraries-and-archives/heritage-council-members



STORE

The National Trust of Australia (NT) established a gift
store located in Audit House in Darwin in July 2020.

The concept was to create a similar commercial
experience to that of the UK National Trust's "exit
through the gift store" at the Myilly Point Heritage
Precinct; with feedback noting that the gift stores in
the UK were often half the excitement of visiting
heritage places.

A focus on high quality products to build brand
reputation along with selling predominantly NT made
products, items made from NT materials or with the NT
as the subject matter has seen a loyal local following
emerge. Coupled with word of mouth, store sales have
grown month on month since launching.

With tours commencing in January 2021, this created
greater foot traffic and visitor numbers to the Myilly
Point Heritage Precinct and generated greater
visitation to the store. The store paid back initial
investment including stock outlay in February 2021.
Longterm profits, will offset future funding shortfalls
and allow the National Trusts of Australia (NT) to
provide a platform for NT crafters, makers, producers
and artists to sell their product.

It is hoped that the mutually supportive arrangement
of the store between the organisation and product
producers will serve to benefit all parties financially
into the future, enhance visitor experiences and
provide discounted, quality products to members.




MEMBERSHIP

The National Trust of Australia (NT) began 2020 with
approximately 100 members. Buy the end of 2020, the
organisation had just under 200 members. By 30 June 2021
there were 214 members.

Initiatives were implemented to deliver member benefits
such as discounts to the gift store and an improved
eNewsletter. A wider breadth of activities and events
contributed to an increased awareness of the Trust and
encouraged people to join the organisation.

Trialing a discounted first year membership of $25, proved
to be so successful that by the end of 2020, membership
fees were lowered permanently to be $30 (previously $65)
for an adult and $70 for a family (previously $110).
Streamlining membership renewals and joining via our
website has helped to reduce the time impact on staff and
improved correspondence with members.

STAFFING

2020 was a period of significant staffing changes, with
Director Tim Dixon resigning in February and new Director
Grace Foulds commencing work in early May.

Opportunities through Jobkeeper and additional grants
meant that the organisation was able to expand the
Secretariat to include short term contract positions of a
Communications and Event Coordinator, Carmen Chapple
and an Education and Tourism Officer, Clare Seibel and
then Lucy Wilson-Wells.

As the organisation grew throughout 2020, it became clear
that a more permanent accounts and HR position was
required and funds that were allocated to a book keeping
service were re-rolled to fund a permanent, part-time
accounts position. Fiona McManus was appointed to the
role in November 2020

Alex Jones left the organisation in April 2021, with Leanne
Miles coming onboard in May 2021 as Business Support
Officer.



FINANCIALS

The following pages contain a copy of the Audited Financial
Reports of the National Trust of Australia (NT) for the 2020
calendar year and the first half of 2021.

The financial statements are special purpose financial
statements prepared in order to satisfy the financial
reporting requirements of the National Trust of Australia
(NT) Act and the Australian Charities and Not-For-Profits
Commission (ACNC).

As expected in 2020, the organisation experienced a
significant decline in entry fees, school tour revenue,
fundraising and promotion activities. Not withstanding this,
investment made in establishing events, tours, school
excursions, signage and the store broke even and began to
return a profit in 2021.
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National Trust of Australia (NT)

Trust's Report
31 December 2020

Ther Trust members submil the financial report of the Trust for the financial vear ended 31 Decembar 2020,
1. General information
Trust members

The names of Trust members throughout the year and ai the date of this report are:

Janet Leather - Acling President Resignad June 2020
Claira Kilgarifi - Tréagurar Member for full year
ke Schacht - Executive Appointed July 2019
Stephanie Hill Member for full year
Bill Low Member for Full year
Brenda Shialds Appointed July 2019
Chns Millowick Member for full year
Jared Archibald Appointed July 2019
Wayne Green Appaointed July 2009
Colin Beard Resigred July 2019

Ohbjectives and principal activities

The principal activity of the Trust is to promaote the preservation and awareness of hedlage buildegs i the Nodhem
Tarrdory of Ausiralia,

This involves the management 3 portfolio of halage buildings - some of which are owned by the Trust and others
which are under crown lease or a Boencs 1o operate. It also maintains an archive and ressarch library relating to
historic places.

Significant changes

Mo significant change in the nature of these activities ofcurred during the year,

Operating result

The profitiioss) of the Trust for the financial year amourted to $ 152 TAS{201 9 & 11,506)

Signed in accordanss with & resolulion of the Members of the Trust:

Committee member; .52 M Commities memier: 6 e bty [

Hka Sochacht - Executig Claire Kilgariff -

Dated this .........-.. _-%- ......... . olay af ‘A-Pnf 2021



Tel: 0F 8941 1460
Fax: 08 8941 1455
Ermnil- wdmin@Etdhat, com.ae

122 Salonikn S
Parap NT DEIO

GPO Box 4587
Daiwin NT G801

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 60-40 of
the Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 to
the Committee of National Trust of Australia (NT)

I declare thai, to the best of my knowledge and belef during the year ended 31 December 20270,
there hawe been:

{0 na confraventions of the auddor independence requsements as Set out i seckan G-
40 of the Ausdraia Charfios and Nol-for-proffs Commysson Ad 2012 In relation 1o the
audit; and
{ii} no confraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.
Adam Dohnt {(FCA)
Foglstened Company Audior
Darwin
Cated: 8 Apnl 2021

Listality lamibed by & scheme appioved under Professional Standsnds Leglal abion

TDH Fiy Limdted
ABMN: 19 087 170 565
Dhirector: Adam Dohn

LS



Mational Trust of Australia (NT)

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Nota
A eyvenie 3

Cther mooms 2
Raw materials and consumables used

Employes benelils expense

Deprecation and amorisation expense

Propary managament fes

Chher pxpanses

ProfithLoss) for the year

Tetal camprehensive prafit]lass) for
the yaar

2020 2019
5 3
70,324 107,414
£24 455 529316
(26,740) 8,043
{192 485) [139,379)
{14,637) (14,034)
{5.075) (3.807)
{303,118) (257 055)
152 783 (11,586)
152,783 (11,596

The sccompanying notes form part of these financial statements



MNational Trust of Australia (NT)

Statement of Financial Position
21 December 2020

200 2018
Mot 5 ¥
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and sash squivalapts 4 502 305 523355
Trade and othes recenables 5 1,27 a
Inveniories & 16,584 16 687
Cther financizl assets i - 24110
Other assets 5 12185 oM
Marn-curren] dssaets held 1or sabe a = 275 000
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
BR2 A28 1,250, 054

MOM-CLIRREENT AZ3SETS
Prapary, plant and squipment 10 B30T 555 5. 780,887
TOTAL NON-CLIRRENT ASSETE 5,357 888 5 TE0 BT
TOTAL ASSETS & 880 7010591
LIABILITIES
CLRRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 11 14 316 & 004
B rowings 12 e 563
Employes benefis 13 12,132 7303
Sther financial labilities 14 - 284 405
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 28 443 =40 984
HWON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26 448 540 284
NET ASSETS BBE3432  ATI0B4T
EQUITY
Hesereps 4 58 354 4 583 TOT
Retamed sarmings 2312178 £V25 540

6863432 6710847
FRAGERNITY 6863432 B710847

The sccompanying notes form part of these financial statements



Mational Trust of Australia (NT)

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020

Balance at 1 Januarny 2020
Prafit

Transfers from retained earnings o general
TEEEVE

Batance at 31 December 2020

20145

Balance at 1 January 345
Loss

Transhers from refained earnings to general
==t

Batance at 31 Decem ber 2015

The sccompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Seset
Retxined Revaluation General
Earnings Eurplus RESEre Tatat
% 5 3 1
2,126,538 2,875 664 GOT Bdd 6,710,647
152 Tas - - 152,785
&2,454 = (22 454) -
232178 3975 664 578 380 E-.BE.'iiilErZ
Sesat
Retained Revaluation General
E!I‘I'Ill‘lﬂs SIJI'FIII.IE F &5 rva Total
5 5 5 ]
2158 T8 3075 854 547 584 6. 722,243
(11,296) - = (11,58
20, 280) 20260
126 508 SHEFEL-EBA G077 544 8. r10.647




Mational Trust of Australia (NT)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

220 2013

Hota 5 2
CAEH FLOWS FROM QPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Receipls from cuslomers ¥ 82,155 % 148,155
Payrments to suppliers and
SMHOyeas {513,047 52501
Fibesrag] peseh ad 3419 &8.875
Recsipt from grants 254 nas 154,138
Cher cperating receipts 145113 -
Met cash provided by!(used ind
operating screities 16 {48,274) (257 B14)
CASH FLOWS FRONM INVESTING
ACTIITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and
egLuipment {316,325) -
Het mash provided Ey'[used in)
nvasting activities {346,325) .
CASH FLOWS FROMN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
et incressei{decreasa] in cash and
cash equivalents held (354, 554) {252 814)
Zash and cash equivalents at
beainning of vear BD6 003 1,148,717
Cash and cash equivatents at end ol
tinancial year 4 $ 502304 5 E@G.803

The sccompanying notes form part of these financial statements



National Trust of Australia (NT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

1 Basis of Praparation

The financial staimments are special purposs financial statements prepared in ardes bo satisfy the the financial reporing
requirernent of the Matonad Trust of Australia (NT} Act and the Australan Chanties and Not-For- Profits Commission
(ACHG) The Trust has determined that National Trust of Australia (MT) 5 mot a reporting entity, since theme are wlikely
be mxist users of the financial statement who are ot ble to command the preparation of reporis tloved 5o as to satishy
epecifically all of their inforrmation needs,

The finangial staiements have bean prepared in accordance with the ecognibon and measurement requirements of {he
Austrelian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure raquirernents of 2858 104
Presentation of Finansial Statements, AAZE 107 Salement of Cashfivws, AASE 104 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estmates and Erfrors and the A58 1054 Austraian Additcnal Disclosures

The financial slatements, sxcept 1o the cagh flow IRfcenation, have been préparsd on an Fcruals basis and ars Baded
on histornic costs, modified, where applicabde, by the messurement &t fair value of selectad non-curment assets, financial
aesets and fmancial kabilties. The amounts presented m the financial staternents are in Australian dollars and have
been rounded to the neanest dollar

Comparaties are congistant with prior years, unless cthersse stated

The folicwing significant acocounting policies, which are consistent with the prior year unless othersise stated, have
been sdegtad in pregaration of these fnanclal statermsnta

2 Summary of Signiicant Accounfing Policies
[#). Income Tax
The Trust is sxempt from incomse tx under Dwision 50 of the income Tax Assassrmend Acf 7097
(bl  Revenue and other income
All revenue is siated net of the: amount of goods and services tax (GET)

Revenue is recognised on trensfer of goods to the customer &= this is deemaed to be the point in lime when risks
and rewarnds are transfemed and there & no longer any canarship o effective control over the goods.

Giovarnment grants arm recognised at far valee whers thera is reasonable assurance that the grant wil be
recened and ai grant condidions w41l be et Granls relating to axpense teme are recognised as income ower
the periods necessary to match the grant to the costs they are compensating, Grants relating 1o assets are
cradited o deferrad income ai fair value and are credited to income over the expected uselul He of the asset on
asiraightlne basia

Interest is recogmised using the effective mterest methcd.
WMembership income, donalions and bequests are recoanised as revenue when recerred,
[cl. CGoodsand services tax (35T)

Revenue, sdpenses and aedets ane rectgnised net of the amount of goods and serdices tax (G5T), except
wihere the anount of GST incumed s not recoverable frorm the Austrakan Taxaton Chlee (ATO)

Recswables and payable are stated inclusive of GST

The net arnount of ST recoversble from, or payable to, the T3 = induded &= pert of receisbles or payables
i



National Trust of Australia (NT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Far the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(<).

(d}.

().

Goods and services tax (GST)
i the statement of financial position

Cash flowes in the statemant of cash fiows are included on a gross basis and the GST componant of cash flows
anising fram irmeesting and financng activities whach ks recoverable fromy of payakle to, the texation autharity =
classified as operateg cash flows

Inventories
Inventories are measurad at the lower of cost and net reahzable valus

Irventories acquited at no cost, or for nominal considerstion are valued at the current replacement cost as at the
date of acquisition, which i the deamed cost.

Praperty, plant and aquipm ent

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less whem applicable, any
acrymulated dopreciation and impairment

Fropeny

Fregrold land and buildings ang carfed at thedr far valis. Fair vaille as5insd bo éach progemy 15 méasungd
using the most recent unimproved capital valpe as detsrmined by the Morthern Terntory Wabler General,

Increases in the carmg amaunt arsing on the revaluation of propery (5 cradibed fo the Asset Revaluatan
Reserve in equity. Decreases that offset previous incresses of the same ssset are recognised apainst the Asset
Relzluation Resendae directly in equity; all other decraases are recogrisad in the proh o loss.,

Flant and equipment

Flant and equipment are messured vsing the cost model and are therefore carmed at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated losses

Suibsequent costs are inclided in the ssset's carmying amount or recognissd a& a separete asset, 52 Bpproprigte,
carly when it s probable that futwe economic benefits aseociated with the e m vl fiow to the Trust and the cosat

of the fem can be measered reliabby. A0l cther repairs and mainkenance am Mwcogrised as expenses in the profit
of loss in the fimansial penod in which they ane incumsd.

Depreciation

Progerty, plant and equipment, excluding freshold lard, B deprecated on aredesing balance basis aver the
aseate ueaful Me tothe Trust, commencing when the ssset 5 resdy for use.

The depreciation rates used fior each class of depreciakle asset are shomn bakow

Fixad asset class Depraciation rite

Flant and Equiprrent 10-50%,
Furmiture, Fitures and Filfings 10-33%
Cifioe Equipment 53-000%
Leasehokd improvements 10-66%

Heritage buildings are not degreciated due to their specal nature.



National Trust of Australia (NT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policias

(#).

(.

(g}

(h}.

{in.

Praperty, plant and aquipm ent

Af the end of each annual reporting peticd, the depresiabion method, usetul lite and residual value of each assel
= mvieveed. Any mevisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estmate.

An asset's carrying amaant i writken down mmediately b2 its recoverable amount if the assel's camying amaunt
i greater than ks recoverable amount. Irmgadrment lossas are recognised aiher in profit or loss or as &
revaluation decrease § the impairment losses ralate 1o & revalued asest

Gains and keses on dispossls are determingd by companing procesds with the carrying amount. The gains or
Isses ate recognised in the prafit or loss when the Bem is derecognised When revalued assels are sakd,
armourts meluded i he revaliation Surplus relating to that assst are franaferned a the accumilated sunphs.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and eseh eguivalents comprises cash on hand, damand deposite and shorbterm mestments which ane
readdy convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject Ioan inegaficant nsk of changs in value.

Legses
The Trust as a lesses

Far leases that have significantly below-market berms and condiions principally to enakble the Trust 1o fudher &
cigactives (commonly Knovwn 55 parppencornf concessionany leesas), the Trust has opted to recogmese the
eases at cost 6 terrs of the tepmporany rebef under AAZEI018-8

The Trust as a lessor
Thie Trust ease some of iks bulldings to extemal parties
Upan entering mto each contract as a lessor, the Trust assesses. i the lease & an finance or oparating leass

The contract i= dassfied a5 a fmance lease when the terme of the lesss transter substantially all the riska end
rewsmrds of ownership fo the kessee. Al other assets, not within this definifion are classifed &5 operating leases,

Rental income received from operating leases are recognised on a stralghl-line basis over the faem of the
spechic lease

Rental income due unda finance l=ases are recoguised &5 receivables at the armount of 1he Trust's e
nvetsment n the leases

Employes provisions

Frovision = made for the Tiuat's llakdility for employpee henefits adaing from seavices renderad by employees o
the end of the reporting period, Emgloyee benedits that are expecied to be wholly setbled within cne vear have
been measured at the amounts expected io be paid when the liahility & setiled

Provisians

Provisions ang recognsed wiven the Trest hag a Bgal or confructive cligatkan, &% 2 result of past &vents, for
wihich it is prabable that an cuflee of efonamic banefits will result and thak outfice can be feliably messuied



National Trust of Australia (NT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Policias

-

(k).

[}

Ecanammic depandenca

hatonal Tiust of Australia (MT] Is dependent on the Morthern TemrRory Government for the maponty of s
revenue used o opeate the business. At the dabe of this report the Trust members have no eason o bekave
the Morthemn Temkory Governmeant will not continue to support National Trust of dustralia [MTh

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

The Trust has adopted all standards which bacams eMective far the first time at 37 Decernber 2020, the adopten
of therse: standards hes not cawsed any material adjustments to the reported financial postion, performance or
cxarah Niow of the Trost

Financial instruments
Initial recegnition and measurement

Financal irsdrustments are recognised initially on the dats that the Entty becormes party fo the conbracual
provisiona of the instrument.

O inital recognition, all finaneal instruments are measuned at fair value plus tfansactions costs (excapt for
nstruments messurad at far valee through profit or loss where transsction costs sre expeness as meurred),

Firancial assets

All recoanised financal assets ars subssquenthy measered in their @ntinety 2t sither amotissd cost or fair value,
dependmg on the classification of the financial sssets

Classifcabon

O Initkad recogmitlon, the Tust classfies ts financial assets nio the follcsang calegories, those messured at
] arrartised cost

- fair walue through proft or loss - FYTRL

Ll fair walue through ather comprebenside incarms - squilly instrument (FWOCT - equity)

- fair vahie through other comprehansive income - debt nvestments (FYWOE - debt)

Financial assets are not reclassiied subseguent to thair initial recogniion unbessthe Trest changes its business
madal for managing financal assets

Amortised cost
Assats measured at amortsed cost are Enancial assets whaens
' the buskess moded ls b hold assels to colect confraciual cash fows, a2

. the contractual terms give nse on specified dates to cash flows are solely payrments of principal 2nd
intereat om the pinglpal amaunt outstandng.

14



National Trust of Australia (NT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1).

Financial instrumants
Initial recognition and measurement

The Trisfs financial 2s5ett measured ab amorised oot comprse irade and olher recenables and cash and
cash equivabents in the statement of financil postion

Eubsequant to nitial recognition, thess asssis are carried at amoertised cost using the efective Imerest rabe
method lass provision for imparmant

Iriterest inoome, forsgn exchange gains o losses and mpalroent are pecognised (n politar bess. Gain o loss
on derecognition is recognised in profit or koss,

Impairmant of fimancial assets

Irnalmnent of fnancial assets s recognised on an expacted credit lass (BCL) basis for the following assets:
. financial assats msasured at amortised cost

. dabt investmants messuned at FPGC)

Whasn dedermining whetber the credit risk of a fmancial assels has increased significant sinoe inital recognifion
and when estimating ECL, the Entiy considers reascnable and supporiable mformation ihat is relevant and
available without wdue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and gualitative information and anabyss
based on the Entity’s histarical experience and nformed oredit axsesement and including forsard locking
mformation

The Entily uses the presumpbion that an asset whech 5 more than 30 days past dus has seen a signifcant
ncreass in credit risk.

The Entily uses the presumption that 3 financial s s in defaull when

. tis other pany s unkkely to pay its credit obligations to the Test infull, without recourse to the Trest to
actions slich as realsing secunty (if any is hald), or

- tte finamcial agsats s more than 50 days pasi dus

Credit loeses are measured 5 the present walus of the difference beteeen the cash fiess due to the Entity
accordance with the contrad and the cash flows expected o be received. This & applied usng a protabiity
wanighted approach

Trache receivables

Irnpairrment of trade recerables have been deterrmined using te simplfied apgioach n AAS5E 2 which uses an
extimation af [ifetims sxpestad cradl bossss The Enlity has datermined the probability of nan-paymant of the
recaivatde and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from detault

The amount of the imparmant is racorded in 8 seperate allvvance aceount with the: loss being ecognised in
finance expense. Once the recaivable is determined to be uncollectible then the gross camying amount is
wiilten off agairst the assaciated allowanca

1



National Trust of Australia (NT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1).

im).

Financial instrumants
Initial recognition and measurement

Whare the Entity renegotiates the terms of trade recsivables g from cemtain CUSOrmers, 1he feyw expacted Cash
flows are discounted at the ariginal effectve nterest rate ard any resulting diference & the crrying valus &
recognisad in profit or loss.

Other financial assets measured at amonised cost

Irrgpairrrent of oter Tmancial assets measured at amortised cost ane determined wsng e axpected credit ks
model n AA5E % On infial recogniticn of the asset, an estmste of the expected credit losees for tha next 12
mariths B eenghised  Whers the assat has expenenced significant Boreass ncredit sk then the Heatme
Iy are patipated and recognised

The Trust did not hold financial assets at falr value threagh profit o loas sither inthe ourment o comparative
finzncial years,

Financial labilitias

The Trust measures all fnancial liabdites initially &t far value lees ransacton costs, subsegquenty financal
Eakdties are measurad ot amodised oost using the efaciive interest rate method

The finarcaal liabiliies of the Trust comgnse trade payablés, bank and other [cans and finance isase liakities

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

The Trust has adopied all applicable standards which became effactve for the first tirme during the financial
pennd. the adaption of thess standards has nof caused any matarial adjisatment o the reportad fnanclal
position. pedanmance of cashifiow of the Trust Feter fo rate 2 tar further detalls of standands adopted,

The Trust has adopied all standards winch becams effective far tha first time at 21 Desermbear 20240, the adopticn
of these standards has not causad any matenial adjustments to the repceted finandal postion, perfformance or
caesh fows of the Tnest or refec o MNoke for detais of the changes due to standards soopted

3  Other Income

2020 2ng

3 5
Cither Incame
- FACOVErBs o 5,533
- ather moome 56,362 1,517
- proyect adrmimistration - &5, 00k
= denations and fundralsing 18,835 53 B6i1
« (At 538435 262,305

624 4596 320 316

12



National Trust of Australia (NT)

MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Cash and Cash Eguivakants

2020 2Ms
] 5
Cash at bank and in hand 217,030 23 BN
Cepasits ak call ZBE 2TS 284 455
5Oz 308 523355
Trada and Other Recalvablas
2020 2He
1 ]
CLRREMT
Trade recewables i2M -
1,211 =
Invenbarias
2020 Faigh:]
3 5
CLREEMNT
At cost
Merchandise 16,584 16,667
16,984 165 BT
Other financial assets
2020 pui gk
5 5
Tarm depauls . 7410
- 74110
Other Assets
2020 2ME
§ 8
CLURRENT
Prepayments 89,265 8812
Arerued meorme - &2 000
Ciber debiors 2,878 -
12163 FieRes b

13



Mational Trust of Australia (NT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2 Assets held far sale

Men-current asssts hald for sl
Froperty, plant and egupment

2020 2%
& &
- 275,000
- 275,000

The Committes haid a mesting on 17 June 2020, and itwes resolved o disoontinue plans o dispose of the 'Les
Hansen House' shusted in Alice Sprngs and instead pursue tenancy options. As & result of the above decision, the
property ceased o rmeet the recognition criteda for “assets hekd for sale” and hes been reclassiiied to Property, plant &

aquipment for financial statement disclosure

10 Property, plant and eguipment

Buildings
Bl fal vakie

Total bubdings

Plant and squipmeant
At oot

Accurmulated deprecialion
Tatal plant and squipmant
Fumiture, fictwres and fittings

At ool
Accurmulated degreciaton

Total furniture, fixtures and fitings

Crfice equiprrent
At cost
Acciurnulated deprecialon

Total cffice equipment

Froperty improvements
At oot

Aeyrrubalsd degoeciatisn
Tetal praperly Impravemants

Total property, plant and
equipment

5531400 5656400
5.531,400 656,400
B4, 308 44,306
{32,577} [30, 26871
21,732 14,128
23 55T 18357
{14,167) [13.233)
9,380 5,124
32,267 3,521
{12,032) (7 662)
20,235 1,859
435 587 126121
(&0, 783) (53, 7EE)
174,798 72355
6,387,888 5750867

14



National Trust of Australia (NT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

11 Trade and Other Payables

CURRENT

Trade payahles

5T payable

Arcrsed aypenss
Superarnuation payable
Piny'G wathholding payakbie

2020 2018

E: 5
5102 4,023
(4412) (820
5488 1,993
2,395 ooa
4,742 2 000
14,218 8004

Trads and ather payabiles are urescured, non-intesest bearing and are normally settled waitiin 30 daye  The canying value of
trache and other payables & considenad a reasonable appeocirmation of fair value due to the shart-term nature of the

balanoes

12 Borrowings

CLRRENT
Linsacumed liakbilities:
Credsl Cards

13 Employes Banefits

Current akalfias
Annial eae

14 Other Financial Liabilities

CURRENT
Zovemment grants

Criver grants
Cemmunity Banafi Fund

2020 ame
3 $
- 503
- 583
2030 MG
] §
12132 7,308
12132 308
2020 20 &
5 §
- 41,204
. 14,660
- 228 545

- 284,409

15



National Trust of Australia (NT)

MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

16 Reserves

[#),  Assel revaluation reserve

The axset revaluahcn reseren records revaluations of properties osned by the Trust Propeddiees are recorded af

values determined by the Morthern Tarriory Valuer General,

(). General reserve

The general resere represent funds for which the Trust has designated for a particular purposes in future

penods.

16  Cash Flow Informaticon

[2). Reconciliation of result far the year to cashflows fram operating activities

Feconciliaton of net incoms to net sash provided by operating activities

Lexss for the yvear
Cash fioes eucluded from profd
attnbtable to oparating activities
HMon-cash flows m profit

. danveci ation

Provimaon for employee enfitbements
Changes in assets and Iabifties

- (iIncrexsefdecrsase n tade and other

receivables

- (incregeel/decrease n prepayments

- (incregseldecrease n |rventones

- mormassdecreass] n tmade and other
payables

Cashfloes from operatcns

17 Statutery Information

The regisiered office of ard pringpal place of business of the Trust is
Maticnal Trust of Austraia (MNT)
2 Bumelt Place
Larrakeyah NT 0320

2020 2019
E 5
152,785 (11,588

14,637 14,034
4,824 8,827
57,893 4D
[37T) [B4,608)
103 (7,700

[278,088)  (189.812)
(48,274 (252 515)

16



Mational Trust of Australia (NT)

Statement by Members of the Trust

The responsible persons declare that in the responsible pessons’ opmion:

1. ihe accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 3 1o 16 are drawn up 50 a3 to present fairly he state of
affairs of the Trust a5 at 31 December 2020 and the results of the Trust for the yeer ended an that date;

2. the accounts of the Trust have been properly prepared and are In aecordance with the books of account of the Trust,
3. thare are reatonable grounds to beliewa that tha Trust will be abls fo pay s debts as and when thay fall dus.

4 the financial staternents and rotes satisfy the reguirements of the Ausiratan Chaviffes and Mal-forprafits Commission
Act 2 E

Thiz statemant Is in sccordance wilh subsaction 0_15{2) of the Ausialian Charies and Nof-for-profit Commission Act 2012

17
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Indepandent Audit Report to the members of National Trust of Australia
{NT)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Qualified Opinfon

Yie have audited the accompanying fnancial statements of Mational Trust of Australia (NT)
ithe Trust), which compnses the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the
statement of profif or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity and the staternent of cash flows for the year then ended, and noles to the financial
statements, meluding a summary of signifcant accountng polices, and the staternent by
members of the Trust

bn our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basiz for Quaiied COpinion
section of our report, the accompanymg financial staterments of the Trust for the year endged
31 December 2020 are prepared, in all matedal respects. in accordance with financial
reporting requirements of Dwision 60 of the Australan Chardles and Nol-for-profls
Commizsion Acf 2012, including;

i giving a true and fir view of the Trusts financial position as at 31 December 2020
and of it's Bnancial performance for the year ended, and

() complying with the Nafione! Trust of Ausfrafia (Norfhem Terrforyl Act, AustraBan
Accounting Sandards to the extent described i note 1, and with Division 80 of the Ausiralian
Charties and Nol-for-profits Cormmizsion Regulation 2013,

Bagis for Qualified Opinion

B is not practcal for the Trust to establish accounting confrals over non grant Incormea prior Lo
its receipt and accordingly it is not possible for our examination to inclede audit procedures fo
extend bevond the amounts recorded in the accountng records of the Trust

We conducted our audit in accordance with Austrakan Audting Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described as in the Auditors Responsiifties for the Auwdst of
the Financial Statements seciion of our report, We are independent of the Trest in accordance
with the auddor independence reguirements of the ethical requirements of the Accountng
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the code) that are relevant fo our audit of the Snancial statemants n Australia
Wile have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code,

Wile believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and approperiate fo provide a
basis for our gualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attestion to Mote 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial staterments are prepared to assest the Trust to meet the
reqguirements of the Nafional Trusf of Ausfrala (Norfhem Termiory) Aot and Division 60 of the
Austraian Charties and Noldorprofls Commission Act 2072, As a resull, the financial
statements may not be suitable for ancther purpose. Cur report is intended soleby for the Trust
and should not be disiributed 1o or wsed by parfies other than the Trost. Our oplnion |s naot
madified in respect of this matter

Lishality limibed by & scheme apgroved onder Professionnl Standards Legi= oo

TIH Pry Limited
ABN: 19 DBY 176 555
Director. Adun Dofud
iB



Emphasis of Matter - Going Concern

Without guakfication to the opinkon expressed above, attention 15 dewn Lo the followng
maiter. As disclosed in Mofe 3, the income received by the Trust is predominantly sourced
from the Morhern Temitory Govemmenl The appropratensess of prepanng thks Trust's
financial statements on a going concern basis is dependent wpon this continued support

Responsibiliies of Managememnt and Those Charged with Governance

Management |5 responsible for the prepamation and fak presentation of the financial
statemenis i accordance with financial repofing requirements of the Aelona! Trosi of
Australia (Northem Terntoryl Act and Austrafian Chanties and Moldfor-profls Commission
Feguiafionr 2013, and for such internal confrol as the management determines is necessary o
enable the preparation of the Snanclal statements that are fres Fom matedal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or ermor

In prepanng the Snancial statements, management |s responsibie for assessmg the Trust's
abildy to confinue as & going concem, disciosing, as applicable, matters related fo going
concem and using the going concern basls of accounting unless management elther intends
to liquidate the Trust orto cease operations, or has no realistic atternative but to do so,

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Trusts fnancial repoing
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statemernts

Cwr objeclives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the nancial statements as
a whole are free from matedal msstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an
audtor's report that includes our opmlon. Reasonable assurance |5 a kigh level of assurance
but i not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Ausfralian Audsng
Standards will abvays detect a matedal misstatement when it ecsts. Misstatements can arlse
from fraud or emor and are considersd material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decsions of users laken on the bask of
this financial report

Adam Dohnt (FCA)
Registered Company Audior
Darwin

8 Apdl 2021

L]



Tel: 0 8941 1460
Fax: 8 8941 1455
Emnil- wdmingZidhat, com.ae

L1202 Salonikn Strest
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GP0 Box 4587
Daiwin NT (801

MNational Trust of Australia (NT)
For the Year Ended 31 Decem ber 2020

Disclaimer

The adddional financial data presented on page 21 B & accordance wih the books and
records of the Trust which have been subjected to the auditng procedures appled n our
statutory audit of the Trust for the year ended 31 December 2020, 1§ will be appreciated that
gur stabutory audit did not cover all detalls of the agditional financial data. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on such fnancial data and we give no wamanty of accuracy of
reliabilty in respect of the data provided. Meither the firm nor any member or employee of the
frmn undertakes responsibility In any way whatsoever o any parson {other than National Toust

of Australia (MT)) in respect of such data, inckeding any errors of omissions therein however
caused.

Adam Dohnt (FOA)
Registered Company Auddor
Darwin

B Apal 2021

Ligbaliny lmnebed by & schenie spgroved under Profieszional Stamilerds Tegial ation

TOH Fiy Linsited
ABRN: 19 0R7 176 565
Drirector Adam Dhofmd



National Trust of Australia (NT)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Detailed Profit and Loss Account

Income

Other branch revenues
IFtEragl inoame

Rantal incomes

Member subscriptions
Erans

Danatizns and fundraising
Recoveries

Ciher inoomaea

Total income

Less: Expenses
Accounting fees
Achzertising

Auditors remunsrahan
Bank charges

Cleaning

CompiEer expenses
Consuting and profecsional faes
D=praciation

Donations

Fundraizing costs

Hira

Insurance

Leave pay

Meambesship

Cifecm pquipment and supplies
Fest control

Postage

Printing ard stationsry
Rapairs and maintenance
Sialames

Siecurty costs

Stalf tralning
Subscriplions

Sundfy SXpenses
Superannuation contribitions
Telephone and fax

Travel

Litities

Cost of sales

Property management fea

Total Expenses

Wet Loss

220 2019
5 ¥
7,792 58,110
3419 5,876
45,793 55,278
5318 7.140
538,494 262 305
18,833 53 O
- 5533
6,362 TEIT
584, 815 438,720
3,315 7 65
6,743 3043
8,950 5,800
2,568 1,849
12,480 F121
10,881 4 867
25,764 21,500
14 E3T 14,034
3,717 1,500
1,852 741
1,840 2830
48175 25,263
4,825 6,627
1,002 .
11,548 3636
767 1,062
T8 268
4,638 5,563
100,925 94701
170,084 120,962
2678 Tiaga
2,088 :
1,380 1,734
12,834 41,435
15,458 11,460
2,505 2714
285 4351
28,753 HMN7
26,740 (6,048
5,075 3607
542,034 448325
B HA AR

ey
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Mational Trust of Australia (NT)
AEMN: B0 928 924 603

Trust Mambers' Report

The Trist Members submit the firancial repor of the Mational Trust of Ausiraiiaz NT for the sic month's
andied 30 June 20021,

Trusi Members

The names of Trust Membars throughout e el mondne and &1 the dade of this report arec

Fim Dixen {President)

Ciaire Kilgarill (Treasuser)

lika Schachl (Secretary)

Grace Foulds (Director) Reslgned 31 August 2021
btalens Bomskoy (Direcion) Appoirbed 31 August 2031
Eddie Webber [Ordinary Member)

Stephaniz Hill (Crdinary Member)

Bill Low (Crdinary Mambar)

Brenda Shietds {Ordinany Mesnber}

Chirle Milowick {Ordinary Member)

Jared Archibald (Ordinany Member)

Weyne Graen [Ordinary Membear)

Wim Farrar {Ordinary Member)

Lyndan Ross {Ordinary Membar)

Laiwa Rowe (Ordnsry Mamber)

Trust Members have bean In office since tha start of the six months and io the date of this report uniass otherwise stated,

Principal Activities

Tha principal actiBes of the Trust during the Financial year wane 1o promose the prasendation and swareness of hesitaga
buiidings in the Mortharn Territory of Ausiralia,
Thie irvolves the mansgament of a porffolo of hertage bulldings, some of which sre cwned by the Trust and others which
arg undar Croem: lease o 4 icence fo oporade:

Significant Changes

The Trust an 11 May 2020 passed & modion Lo change (ks financlal year and fram 31 December to 30 Juna,
Az a conseguencs of this, thess nancial statements are for the sic months ended 30 June 2021, The
comparative numbers reportad in 1hasa financial statemants ane for the 12 months ended 31 December
20310,

Kag ather significant chenges in tha neture of thesa activities ocourred during the financial year,

Opereting Result
The Trusfs aparating loss for the six months ended 30 June 2021 amownbed to $794,620 (2021 12 monkhs
anded 31 Decamber 2020 : profit of $152,785).

Ewvents Subsequent to tha End of the Reporting Pariod

Mo matters or circurmatances have ansen snce the end of e financial year which sigrdficantly affectsd o
Tnaru}griﬁc.mﬂynﬁn::mmufﬂanm. ihe results of those operatons, or the skale of affairs of
ke Trust in fubsre financial years.

Claire Kilgariff (Treasurer)

Malane Bjormskoy (Director) b /
L

Dated this Q_/l,) day of Septembar 2021



Nexia

Edwards Marshall NT

AUDITOR™S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNGER SECTION &0-40 OF THE AUSTRALIAN CHARTITIES AND NOT-FOR-PROFITS COMMISSI0MN ACT 2012
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE NATIOMAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA [NT)

| daclarn that, to the best of my knowledge and balief, during the six months ended 30 June 2021 there have been:

{i Mo contraventions of the suditor imdependence requirements as set owt b Section 60-40 of the
Austrofion Chorities Not-for-prafits Cormmission Act 2012, In relation te the awdit, and

i Wo contraventions of any applicable code of professsonzl conduect in relation to the audit,

ll| z II" L " .'l:':'-
1% f LJ g / .ﬁLl-!—"| ,{_-‘ i
[ o L

Mexia Edwards Marshall NT

Chartered Acocountants

1L

Woel Clitford
Fartner

Dated; 18 Septeambar 2071

Mexia Edweards Marshall NT
AEM T4 414 259116

Lewat 2

TCG Cente

BO Mitehal Sireat

Crarwin BT CBOO

GO Bex 3770

Diamrveirs PT OB

p +618 6361 5585

W nEissTInt.oorm.an

Hexia Edwords Marshall NT [ABN 74 214 259 11L& isafem of Caartered Aocountants. 1% s affllabed with, bt

indiepandant from Mol Ausiraln PhyLbd. Hosta dastraka Pry Lid e 2 mambaer of Nesia Internationsd, 3 kading,
sl nebaath of ingdigrsnden socuiibing o oonidBreg i, For mdns informalion plisiie S8 v fads coim
s legal, Meither Meawa Internmtonal nar el fosirmis Py Lad provide senvices toclients

Lin ity brmébed by 2 schems spproved under Professionsd Sandands Logsiation.



MATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (NT)
ABM: 60928 924 &0

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ravanue and Oiher Incoma
Trading actiies

Grant incoma

Oifves Income

Total opearating revanuss

Operating Expenses
Accounting and consuing costs
Advertising

Bad debls expenssa

Bank and merchan fees
Clagning costs

Deprecielion sapeansas
DonaSons and gifts

Emploype axponses

Equipmen cosis- mingr
Insuranca

DOthes operating cosls

Repairs and manbenance costs
Subscrptions

Uitilnies

Total operaling expenses

FOR THE SiX MONTHS EMDED 30 JUNE 2021

Profit! [Loss) for the six months ended 30 Jume 2031

Other comprahansive income

Total Cthar Comprahensiva Incomae

Total Comprahensive incomal [Loss) for the six months

NET CURRENT YEAR PROFIT! (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO

THE TRLEST

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMET (LOSS) ATTRIEUTABLE

TO THE TRUST

Six Months  Twelve Morths
Hole 2021 2020
E 5

2 5,729 {21.784)
2 80,676 538,456
2 79,141 143,962
135,846 660,704

14,058 45,629

4,337 8,743

1,096 .

Ti0 2,687

3,009 12,480

18,108 14,837

164 e

3 154,028 193,467
8,779 22,189

3,091 48175

6,673 A%

81,606 100,925

1,625 1,380

15,082 26,763

330,480 507,810

{194,620 152,786

{194, 820) 152,786

{194 620) 152,786

(194, 620) 152,786

The accompanying nobes form pard of these financial

watemenbs.



MATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (NT)
ABN: B0 928 524 603

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 201

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Giher Receivables

Imventary
Other Current Assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Planl and Equipment

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Ciher Payables
Oiher Current Rabilities

Provisions for Employes Benefits

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MET ASSETS

EQUITY

Reserves
Ratained Earmings

TOTAL EQUITY

Tha accomparnying notes form part of these financial
statemants.

Note

- T O 4=

gL
11

12

Twelee

Six Monthe Months
2021 2030
§ %
354 526 502,304
5117 8,560
17 654 16,583
27 96848 9288
405,266 536,756
6,384, T25 6,387 5EG
6,384,725 6,357,550
6,789 991 6,884, 381
26,066 18,126
853,349 -
11,783 12,132
121178 30,858
121,478 30,858
6,668,813 6,563,433
3,975,854 4 551,264
2,582,840 2312110
TEBEEETY HEERAEY




MHATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA [NT)
ABM: 60 928 D24 €03
ETATEMENT OF CHANGES N EQUITY
FOR THE SI{ MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Retained Ganaral Todal
Earnings Hmnu‘ﬂ Regarves Egquity
Hots $ i
Balamce af 1 January 2019 2,906,539 35975 BS54 G744 B.F1064T
Comprabensive income:
Profit for the yaar 162, THE 152,786
Cither compretanghae Incoms for fhe year - - - -
Total comprehenalye Incame (loss) stributable (o Membars of the entify
For the year 152,785 152,786
Transfars from and (o} Resarves 12454 132,454} E
Baltance at 31 Decembeor 2020 ,1_313'111 3475 864 E7E350 6863433
Balanocm at 1 January 2021 2312178 3.475,864 575380  6BE3 443
Comprohensive income:
Loss for fhe sik manths {194 &30} {18630,
Cither comprahansive incoms Tar the s montha - - =
Total comprahensive Incoms (lees) siributable to Mambars of the entity
for the aix months {184 520} - (1594 E20)
Transdars from and (o) Resereas ST, 380 (675, 20
Bolamce ot 20 June 2021 2682040 3975064 6560015

The secompanying nales form pan of these firancisl stalements.



HATIOMAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (NT)
ABM: 60 525 024 603
ETATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 51X MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Twahe
Six Months Months
HNote 2021 200
¥ ¥
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recaipts from grants and funding bodies 133,30 254,088
Recaipts from customars and other parfies 31,184 207 268
interast racedved 1128 3419
Paymanls be supgliers and employess (268,044 (593,047
Met cash provided by (used in) operating activities 15 {102,410} (48,274}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and eguipment - -
Paymenl for property, plant and eguipment (45,368) (346, 325)
Mel cash used in imesting aclivifies [45,388]) {346,325}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - .
Mat Increass (decreasa) in cash hesd (147, 7TTE) [ B
Cash and cash aquivalants at beginning of tha financial year 502 304 BE6 B3
Cash and cash equivalants at end of the financial yaar & 354 526 B304

The accompanying nodes form part of theses financial
stalamants,



HATIOMAL TRUST OF ALLSTRALLA [NT)
ABN: &0 928 924 602
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE 51 MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Maote 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Podicies

Financial Reporting Framework

Thi financial slatements ara apacipl purpnga finamecial stalgments praparad In erder 1o sadisly Tie reporing mguirgments of The Malianal
Trusl of Ausirala (Norlhermn Tardlory} Amendmend Act 1986 and the Ausiralian Chanlies and Mol for Profils Commmaian [ACMC) Acl
2012, The Trst Mambers have dabermined that the Trust ks not a reporting emtisy. Tha Trust is & not-for-proft sntily for francial reporing
purposas usdar Aiplalian Accounling Slandands

The financial slalements wera sulhooised for Ssue on 2021 by tha Mational Trust of Australia [MNT),

Stwtement of Compliance

The financial report has besn prapared n accordancs with e Natoral Trust of Avsiralia (Morthem Temtory) Amencrment Acl 1888 and
the Australian Charities and Mol for Profits. Gomemission (ASHC] Act 2012, the basis of aocounling spocfed by-all Ausimlian Aoccanling
Slardands and inleprataiong, and the dischosing requingmants of Accconting Stendards AASE 101 Presantation of Financis
Siaternants, AASETOT: Stalemenis of Cash Fiow, ASSE 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Eslimales and Emors, AASE
1021 : Matenality and AASE 1084 : Austrafian Additional Disclosures: as appropriafe for Mot-far-Profil coented enlities,

The Trusl kas concleded that the reguiremenis set oul in A858 10 and AASE 128 are not applicable a3 e Tt does nok Feee any
subsidiares, assoclales or joint vertures, Hence the firancial statements comply with &l the recognition and measureenant requiemanis
i Ausiraban Accounling Standards,

Bagin of Preparatian

The financial stalements, excepd for tee cash Bow information, hase been prepared on an accndals basis and are based on kistorical
casls, unless cifwnaisg stabed in tha notes, Materal accoundng policles adopted in tha praparation of fese Anancisl stlalments ana
praganied Dalow &% have been consiatenty appisd unfess ollssnwize labsd. The amaurts gredanbed in he Teancisl sialamants ke
been rounded do the neares dollar,

Accounting Palicss

{a}  Reverues snd Oiber Incaims
Contributed Assels

Thi Trus! receheas assels from (b govamment and ofer paries far il or norminal congideralion in onder b Turther ile
ohbjectives. These assets am recogrised in accordance with the necognition reguremens of ather apolcable accounting
slandards (AASHE 5. AAEE 16, ARSE 116 and AASE 138],

Oin inilial fecogaiion of 20 aaged, e Trual recogries relaled smounts (being conlribulions by owners, lease iy, frescal
instruments, prosisions, revenue or coniract lnisdity ansing from & contract with a ousiomar—),

Thi Tiusl recogrmes income immedslaly in profil or foas as e differance betwessn inilial carmying amounl of B8 asas] and the
relatod smounks.

Qperaling Granta, Donaticna and Baguests

Winen D58 Trusl receives GEerating Giam! rdvanus, donaBons of Bajueals, il astediss whelhor fhe conract @ enforcaable and
has sfficienty specific performance obligafions in acoomdancs with AASHE 15,

Wnan bath hess condilions & salishied, the Tl @
= identifies sach performance obligaton relating 1o ®he grank
- recognises o cordrect abdily for il oblgatiors pnder Ihe agresmenk. and
= mecognises newenus as il satsfies it perfomance obligations,

Wihen the oantract is not enforceabls or dos=s not have sufficiently specific performanoe obdgations, the Trust:

. retagnises the asset recelved in aceardance wilk the recognilion requiremesils of ather apolfcable accouniing standards
[AASE 8, AASE 116 and AASE134)

- recognises refaled amounis (Daing conifbualons by cwners, lease Rabilty, Trencial instumants, provisions, revenes of
conbract liabifity arising fram a confract with & customer); and
= repognises income immedialely in profil or loss as the dfemenoe bobwaen tha initfal camying amount of the assel and the
ralFind amound,
I# @ contract lkabity i recognised as a minted amow above, the Trust recognises Income in prafil or lase when or as [ satisfes
ile sbligations urdar the eanlract,
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MATIOMAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (NT)
ABN: 60 238 824 603
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE 51X MONTHE ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (Cont])
Rovenae and Oiher imcome (Conk.}

Capital Grant

Whan tha Trusl receknes a capiial grant, I recogrises a labiiity for the excess of the inBial camying amount of the francel ssel
received avar any rekatad armounts (haing comibuions Dy ownlea, leasa Bablity, finarcial instrumaents, Provisions, NevEnuR. of
waniract kablity ansing from a coniract with & cuslomes) recognised under piher Ausiralian Accounting Standards.

Trea Trusl recogrises income in profil or loss when o as the Trus) satshies ilS obligations undes the berms of the granl.

Indnrest Income
Inberest income is recognised using The affective inlerest method.
Diévidend Inooma

ﬂﬂfmlrﬁnﬂg‘hﬂ gividends in profil of Kes only wWhen ll'ﬂl'iﬂli'l'ﬂ reGanE paymenl @ eatabiahed,
Incomia froem Sale of Goods

T Toust prowides wenuns Tor hire and sells marchandise, caffee and tess 10 the general pubiic, Revenue ks reocgnised whon
cantrol of e produschs bes frarsdared bo the cusiomes. For such Iraneactiang, This iz whan (b praducis ane delivansd 10
customers, Discounts ane provided 1o Trust Members on e sale of merchandise #ems.

A repaivanls wil Ea recognised whan goods and services ane provided 1o the customes, The Trusts right to consideration is
deemed uncondilional al this Sme a8 cnly the passags af lims & regeired befors paymant al thal corsideration is due, Thara is
no significant fnancing component because sales are made within a credit tem of 30 %0 45 days.

Thia Trust's historical expenencs with sales refurns show that they ans neglighls and conalderad b be highly mprohable. A3
such ro prowision for sade refunds is recognised by the Trust at the time of saie of goods and sondoos,

All reverue is slaled nel of the amourd of goods snd Serdces txe

Gift Shop Inventorias
Gift Shop meentories comprse books, magaznas, pubicalions and lea products. Inventonias are measured a1 the ower of cost
and nat malisable value, Costs are assgnoed on a first-in, Srsi-cud basis,

Proparty, Plant and Equipmont
Each class of property. plant and equipment is cared al cost or fair value 8s ndicated, less, whers spplicable, sccumulated
depraciation and amny impaiment losses.

Property

Freshold propesty and Baildings are meamured & 1hakr far value leas any impsirmani lcaseq, Glvan tal thase assels are
camied at their fair vaiue, the Trast Members do not believe that oy dapreciation of buildngs s required. Prapeny
Improvemenis are measuined on e cosl basis and are therefore camed ot cost less acoumulated depreciation and amy
dccurulabod impainment kesss,
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HATIOMAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (NT)
ABM: &0 928 924 G03
HOTES T THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE 500 MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Summary of Significant Accownting Palicies {Cont.)

Propedy, Plant and Equipment {Cant.}

Plant and Equipment
Plant amd equipmen are measurad on e cost basis and ans thamdone camied & cosl ks securraiaiod depredalion and any
ACeurrsated imsaimen ks,

The camyng arrount of freahckE propsty, buldrge, propsaty impeovemants arnd planl and eguipment ahs msdewed Wh’bj'
Trusl Memban i ansune hey are fol in excess of the recovearable amoont from Fese assats. The recoverable amourd 5
assesead on the basis of the expacied net cash fioss that will be received from the acsats” ermgloyment and sutsguen

dispasal,

In B @i tha canmying amownt of freeheld progay, Duiklings, propedy improvemests and plam WW’!‘H id-wﬂhlr
than their eslimabed recoaesrabde amoun, e camying Smounl s wiitten down mmediately 1o thalr esSmaind ecoverabis
amounl and impairmers losses are recogrised in profit or loss, A formal assassmant of ecowerable amosint B mace when
imprairrnend indicators are prasand {reder o Mote (7} for detsils of impaimeniy

Proparty, plant and acuipenant that b besn contibutad &t ne sl or for nominal cosl, are valusd snd tecognied at the far
walua of the s=s=1 8l the dabe 1 aoguired.

Depreclatian

The depreciable amount of all fxed asssis, Incliding any capitalipad ase assets, bul sxclading fresbeld prapenty and buddings,
b deprecisiad on 8 slraighine basis over the sassi's iaeful #e fo the Trusl commencing fram the lime the asset is beld ready
far use, Leasehold improvements are depredaiod owver the sharer of afther the unexpired parod of the keass or 1he eslimated
usaful [ves of e Improvemants,

The depracialion rales vsed for each class of depreciable assels anec

Class of Fixed Assot Dupraciation Rate Life (%)
Loasahold impravements 6%
Plart and equipmant 10-80%
Fumiture, Fixdures and Filtings 10:33%
Office Equipment H50%

The a=ssls’ residual valees and useful lives are reviewed, and acjusted # approprate, at $he end of each reporing pariod.

Ary apkal's camying amoun i wiillen down immedisely 1o i recoverable amount if the assel's camying amoun ts grealer than
lis estimaled recoverable amount.

Gaing =nd losses on deposals are determined by companng procseds with the camying amount, These gains or 585 &
recogrised in pralit or kess in thae peniod in which thay arise, Whon rovalusd assels are old amounis ingluded in the revaluation
surphis relating bo that s ans irsnedared lo mbemed eamings,

AL 50 Jura 2021, the Trusi Members have perdormed a Members' valsation oo fhe baiidings reperied & fair vakse, The Tras
Mombers harve neviesnd e 1Tk deads of each property cwhed by The Tist and heve adopted 1he Unimproved Capital Vale
a5 paf the moesl meenl valusion Baled by the NT Vahes General The Trusl Mernbers thersfors beliove, Shat based on the
expecied wtlity of the assels, their existing condition and the cosd of replacems of feen aaeals, that T cunenl CamyEng
amount of the buildings and prapary iIm@roventanls refiacts el fair wakse al 30 June 2021,
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MHATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (NT)
ABIM: 60 928 324 600
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 202

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cond)

Leases
The Trust as Lessee

Nwm of a conlract, the Trust assess i the conlract corftaineg or is & keasa, I there is 8 hmﬁm.#mtﬂﬂ
and & comespanding [easa kability is recognised by the Trust whena the Trust is a iessee. Howover all conbracts thad ane
clagafed ag ghorl larm badies (Jadde with remaining leass am ol 13 moning o kas) and leasas of low veliss assats ane
recogresed as an operating ose on 2 straight-lne basis aver the term of the lass,

Initially ihe Ipase Rabilty is measurad al the preserd value of tho lease paymerss 58 o be paid a1 commencemend date, Tha

leise payments &re discounted at the inbésast rela impEcE in the [easae, 1 1his mis cannot ba readily detanmined, the Trest uses
the incremertal barowing roba.

Leaas payments inchided in ihe messanamant of ihe lease liabikty ane as folows |
- g eass paymanis ess any lease Rcenihas:

«  vanable lease payments that depond on an index or rate, inifialy measursd w@ing We index oF rale af the commercamant
date

= {he amount axpecied b BB payaitls iy the faases under residual value guarantsas;

» the esercise price of purchase aplions, il the lestes @ reasonably carlain o axercise e GRSond.
- bRk paymenis under exbension options, if the lessee is reasonably cerain to exerciso the opbions; and
«  payments of permiies for berminating the kesse, § the lease bm refects the exercizg of an oplion Do lenminate the lkase.

Thed righé-i-use assets comprisa the initial measuement of e comesponding leasa lability as mentioned abowva, any loase
paymems mads &t or bedare the commencament dabe as well &3 sy miial droct costs. The subkequant maagsuramant of the
righi-of-use assets is at cost less acoumuiabed deprecialion and imparment losses.

Right-pfause assets are deprociaiod ovor the leaso berm or useful liie of the undedyving assel whichewer is the shorlesl Whene &
leasn tranalars cenarship of the undertying asset of the cost of the rgh-of-use asset reflects that the Trust anlicipates o
oxorcisa a purchase oplion. the speciic assed & degreciabed over e usedul ife of he underdyirg asssl,

Concekslonary Leaias

Fiar lpaans el have sigrificantly balow markel barms and condilions prncpaly o enabie The Trast io Turthar s objachives

known as pepparcom [ concessionary keases), the Trust has adopbed the lermporary reliel onder AASE 2018-8 and
masLras e ight of e assats af cosl on initial recogniion.

Financial Instremsnts

initisl Recognition snd Méssprman!

Financial assets and financial liabiltes sre recognised when (he Trasd becormnes @ pany o IFe coniracual proiaions ba the
Instnement. For financial assets, this & the date that the Trust commils #satf o efher the purcharss or sale of the aszet (o bade
daba aceounting is adaphed).

Finandal insirumants {excepd for Irade receivables) are [nitisly measumad al faF valiss phis Iraneachon ooels, sNeepl whana The
instrument is classified "at {air valos through profil or foss®, in which case iransackion cosis are axpensed bo profi or joss
Immecksbaly, Whare avadable, quoted prices inon active market are used 1o determing faic value, In cbher circumstances,
valuation beghniques are adopbed.

Trowde mecevables are inilially messured &l e rdacton prics I the Wade recaivables to nol contaim sigrificant Snancing
companent of if e praclical expedierd was appled a5 specified in pasagraph 63 of 858 15 Revenue from Conrscis with
CListoamars.
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MATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (NT)
ABN: 60 928 924 603

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE 50{ MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Summary of Sigrificant Acceunting Palicles (Cant,)

Financial Instrumants (Cont,}

Classiication and Subsoguant Messuremant

Financial Habilitios
Finencd liabiltes are subseguently measured al: amofsed cost; or fair value fhrough prodit or loss,

A Tinancial liatiily is measured af {air walse ihrough profi or ioss if ta finenosad liabikty is: & contingoent consideradion of an
noquirer in @ business combination o which AASE 3; Business Combinafions appies; held Tor trading; or infally desionaled as
Al fair value through prafil of loes.

Al cther financial liabilies are subsequently measuned at amonised cost using the affectve intenes! mathod,

Tre affectve nlerest mathod s usod o alioceta mares! income or infanest sYperss over the Felevant panod. The effeciive
imanes] Tata is [ha ivfarnal rate of refurn of e narcial sasel o liahifly. That is, i is the rale $al sxactly discounts tho
eglirnabed fuune cash fows Through She expected e of the instroment o the el camying amount & ingad recognision,

& Tinarcial Tabily is hadd for feading I 1 & incamad for the purpoae of repuschasing or repaying in the near lerm; pertof o
portfolio whese there is an actual patiem of shortderm peofit tzking: or a dervative fimancial instrumend (eacept for B darkative
that is in a financial guaranies contracl or a derteative that & in effactive Fedging relsbonships),

Ay gains or losses arsing on changes in far value s mcegrisad in prafit or loss ie @ exiend thal ey ae nol pan ol &
dasignabed hedging relalicrakip,

Tha changa in fair value of the financinl bdity attrbadabln to changes in the suer's credt vek i3 [Bhen 1o ol comprenansie
ircorne &nd is nod Saibsagouenlly reciassifisd o proft or loss. instead, i & ensiered fo retained samings wpon derecogrition of
the financeal liabilty.

I 13king the changs n credl risk in other comprehensive mome enlages or oreales an acoounting rssmaich, then thase gans
ar lpsses should be laken fo profit or loss rther than olhar compeabansiea Incoma;

A Tinancial Bddily cannol be recdassified.

Financial assols
Financial assets are subseguenty messured al: amomised cost; (air value hrough ofher comprehensive income; o tair valus
nrcuigh proft ar loss.

Measuremaent is on the hasts of o pimarny cibea; thi confraciual cash flow chamcteristes of the financal axsst: ard the
busirshis modal far managing the Eroemoial sy

A financial assal Mal masts he fofosdng candilins is suisgquently measured gl amomeed oosl, the franoal asesl is
managed solely 16 colect conlraciual cash fows; and ke conlraciusd bems within the financlal assel give nse o cash floss that
oe solcly paymants of principal and indarest on the principal amount ouistanding on specified dates.

# francial assel that meets e followang conditions & subsequently measured af fair valus heough olhee compeaharsive
Incomig; e confrachual lenms within tha finandel aasal give fes 1o caskh Nows el e solsly payments ol prrcipal and nlenss
o he principal amounl outstanding on specified dales; ard the business model for mamaging the finarcial nsset comprises.
baih contraciual cash ficws caliecton and the seling of tha financial asset.

By cefaull, al other financal asseds that do not meat the maasurement cond®ons of amorised cosl and tr ve ke Thresgh ol
compnaharsive iIncome @e subrequantly measured & Tl valus through peall of loes,
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MATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (NT)
ABN; 60 528 524 603
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE SiX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2031

Summary of Slgnificant Accounting Pallcies (Cont.)

Finameial Instrumsants (Cond, |

Tha Trus! inltially designales a firendal Instrament as measuned at tair value through peofil or loss & & ebmerates or significantly
reckiGas B MABSUEamen| of Mescgnition inceneistency {ofen rolemed o a5 an “acocunting resmatoh”) that would ctéheratss arse
o measuring assels of Rekdilies of recognising the gaing and loasas on Them on diffaren basas; @ 5 in accordance with the
documanted nsk managomenl or invesimend strategy and informaltion aboud the groupings 8 dotumentsd aperoprislely, so the
pardomancs of Ba fnancial Fabdity shat is pant of a group of Anancial labiitas or financial assets can be managed and
evaluated consistendy on a fair valee basis: and it is & yirid cornsct That canaing Bn embadded darfeativa that sigrificantly
mocifies the cash fiows otherstse requred by the contract.

Tha initiml designation of inancial instremenis o messuns & fair valie theough profit or 65 s 8 one-Sms apticn on inflial
classification and |5 imevecable wred the financial assel is derecognised.,

Regular way purchases ard aakes of financial assels are recogrised and demecognisaed at setiement daie in accordancs with
the Trust's acoounting pokoy.

Derecognition
Derecognition refers io ke memoval of & previously recagnteed Rnsncesd sssel of Srancad abitty fram tha slatemant of fAnancia
pogition.

Derecogniion af fnanclal Nabilires

A liabilly is derecogrsad whan it is mdinguishad (e when the abligation in B contract is discharged, cancalied or mxpires). A0
exchangs of an emisling inarcisl Eabdity bar & new ane with subsiantaly modfed s, oF 8 subsianial modiication to e
terms of a firancial fabilty, is treaied s an extinguishment of the exsting lishilty ard recognifion of & new inancal labity.

The difference bebween fhe carying amoant of e Snancis! Babilty denscognised and e considaralion paid and payahila,
including amy non-cash assels transfored or Gabiltes assumed, & recogrised in profil or loss.

of financinl sssets
A financial assel is denecognised when the baldar's conlraclusl Fghls to its cash Sevws aopiras, of the asset & erstarad in
such a way thal all the rishs and rewands of owremship ae substantally warefemed.

All the Faliowing crierta need io be safsfied jar e derscogniiion of # Mnancial aseal: e nghd 1o moele cash Nows from the
asset has eopired or boen transfered; o rsk and rewnnds of ownership of the asset havs been substantially ransfered; and
the Trust Fo longer conirols the assaet (e has no practical abilty bo make unBateral dedsion io seil the asset o a thid party)

On derscognilion of a finarcial assel measuned at amoriised cosl, the difference babweén The &23els caming amount and the
sufm ol the corsideration recalved and recaivabls 9 recogrised in prods or logs,

On derscognition of a deb? instrument classifisd as fair value Feolgh olfser compredanaive ntmme, T currulaae gain of losas
pravinusly accumuiabad in the irvestment rovaluation resere (s nockssifiod o proft or loss.

O daneognilion of an invesimant in sguly which the Trust electod to classify urder falr value through othber compreheraive
income, the cumulstie gain of loss previously sccumulabed in Ihe imeesiments revalualicn mserva s nol reclaesifiad so profit or
Inss, bt is fransiemed fo relained eamings.

impairrment
The Trusl ecogriees & loes alkwancos for supechad cradil nkses an
- Minancial asesis thal are measured Bf amorised cost or far value Shicagh otner comprehensive incame;
=  loase recobvaihbes
= contract assels (eg amount dos from cuslomens undes Comfacia);
= loan commibments that are rof mezsured ol feir value Booagh peofil or loee; and
= financial guaraniss coniracts Tal & nol measuned o falr vals through prodi or loas,

Leis aliovRnc I5 not recognised for -

- fnancial assels measweed a fair vahse through profil or lozs; or
- wsquily inglnements measured al By value Bircugh athar comgeabansive income,
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HATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (NT)
ABM: G0 928 924 603
HOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL REPORT FOR THE 50 MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Summary of Significant Accounting Policios {Cont.}
Fimancial Instruments {Cont,}

Expeched Gredl leaes sre the probabiity- weighled aslimate of ceedit losses over the expacied iife of & Srancad instrument. A
credit loss is the difierence between all contrachsad cash fiows that are dus and all cash lows sepaciad 10 Ba recaivad, all
discourdad at ®a origmal @lective inbemast rate of The Snanckal FErurss,

The Tnest uses the doliowing approaches 1o impairani, as applcable under AA58 9 | Fnencial nsirumenls ;
= I simplified approach;

Simplilied Approsch

The simplified approach doss not requine iracking of changes in credil nsk at every reporing pericd, but Instead requines the
repognition of ifetime axpecled onecit loss a1 all timas.

Thie epsnreach B appleable b
= trade receivable; and
= lsage receivables.

I Passirng the expecied credil lose, & provision matrix for trade recshvable &5 wsed, taking into corsideration various data o
et to an axpocied credit loss (ie dversity of its customer base, appropriate groupings of Behistodcal loas axpanencs, ol

Recagnitiaon of Expacisd Credil Losses i Financal Slatemends
Al eaih repaiting dabs, the Tros! recagnises lhe movemen in e loss allowanos as an impaimmant gain o loss in tha slalerant
of profit or loss and other comprehansive incoms;

Tha camying amount of financial assets maasurad al amofised Cost Rdades e loss alkmancs relesng o thal assel,

Astals maasuned al tar vale through ofher compralenaive income ans mecogiiaad al (ar valus Wi I‘.‘hﬂ'ﬂul in fak value
retognised in oher comprehansive Incoma. The amount in relation o change n oredit risk is transfemed from ather

comprebensve income o proft or foss af every neporling period.

For financial assets thal are ureecognised (g loan commBments vel 16 ba draan, Tnancsal guaranieas], & provision Tor kis
alrsanca is creatnd in o satemant of francial position to recogniss the loss allowance.

Iimipaérment of Assobs

A\ thes end of each reporting pericd, the Trust reviews e carmying amounis of &5 jangibie and Intengitla Assels o detemmire
whodhar there is any indication That These aanats hava bsan impaivad. B such an indicslion exabs the mcoverables amaunt of the
mEsal, baing he higher of the acsel’s fair vakie less costs of disposal and vafise in use, |s compared o the assef's camying
amounl. Any excess of the assel’s camying amount cver s recoverable amount IS recognised Immeciasaly in prolil oF kes,

Whang S assels e ndd hald primasly for el a0ty b gemaraie nel cash nfiows - that 2, they ane spacafised assais held fior
oonlinuing wie of hei service capacdy —as such the fulure economic benefits of the assel are not primardy dependent wpon
the asset’s ability fo gerssmate net cash inflows and when the Trust would, if degrived of the aksal, replacs s remaining lulume
wcanomic benafils, valus in ues i daberrired s Be Geprecisted replacement cost of &n assel.

Whese il s pol possibe 1o eslimale the recaverable amourt of an indvidual asset, the Trusl estmales e recovemble Enourd
of e cash-ganeraling unit fo which tho sssed helongs,

‘Whese an impairment ioss on a revalued indiicgual asset |5 idengfied, this s recognised (debied) against the evalsation
surphss in respoct of the same class of assat (o the exsant thal e mpainment leas doss nol excsad e amount in the
revaluation surphus for thal class of assel,

Employss Banafis

Shortderm employee benedits

Proveision ts made forthe Tnests obligatian for shat-term employes banafits, Shof-larm employas banelts an beealits |olbar
than terminalion Banafis | el are expaciad B0 e saitied wholly witlin 12 manihs after e end of he annual reporting periad in
which the amployess render e redsted servics, Inchuding wages, safaries. annual loave and sck leave, Short-tem employes
penafits 2re measured at the (undscouniod] amounds oepecied 10 be paid when the oblgation |8 seited,

Tre Trusl's obbgatikns for short-tam empioyes benefils such as wages, salares, annual ieaes and 5ick el ane rmcoonised
as & part of curent irada and athes payvabias in tha statemant of inancial pogition,

13
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HATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (NT)
ABM: 80 928 924 803
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE S0 MONTHS EMDED 30 JUNE 2021

Bammarny of Significant Accounting Pollcis [Cont.)
Employas Bansfits [Conk.}

Cber lang-barm amphayes banallis

T Trusl classilies pmplayaes” long sarvice Mave and annual e entikements a5 ofher lang-lerm employee benefiis as they
ané nol expecied o be seilied whally within 12 manife afier the and of he snnual reporiicg peiod in which the amployens
rerder thi relaing servion, Provision s made for the Trust's obligation for other long-tam employee benelis.

Tha Trust's onlgations for longelerm employee bemefits ore presented as non-curent labiffes in #s stalement of france
posilan, axcapt whens Tha Trust dois nel have an unconditionsd right bo dafer sattiamant for at least 12 monghs after the end of
the reporting pesiod, in which case the obligalions are presenied s curmend Fabdifea,

Tre Trust based on past experience records employes's lang serdce leave enfilements on completion of T years ol seivics
with Iha anganksation,

Retirement bonefit cbiigations

Defimed’ confabution supersnnuabon bemells
Cortribuiors &me made Irr fhe Trust e ul‘l‘lphﬁ“ﬂ suparannuation funds ard s changad 8 dpanses when incured.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inchude cash an hand, deposits held at-call with banks, olber shart-term highly liquid invesimess
wilh eriginal mahsiles of heas monthe o Bes, and Bank ovordrafls, Bank cvardrafts are shown within sho-farm bormowings in
currenil Babiklies on the stalemsant of Tinancial position.

Gigads and Services Tax {GST)
Retvaniues, aeparses and asseds are recognised ned of the amount of GST, gocept where the amaunt of GST inoumed |s nol
reooverable bom the Austmfan Texstion Dfhics (ATO)

Recetvabies srd payables & staled inclugive of the smaund of GET receivalie or payakie. Tha ned ameunt of SET moavanoie
fram, or payable to, the ATO & included with cifer receivables or payablies in the stalerment of inancal position.

Cash flows are presesmied on & gross bass. The GET componerts of cash fows amsing from investing or inancing activilies
which ara recavarabie fram, or payabie io, the AT are presenied as operaling cash Sows inclheded in receipts from customers
oF payments W supplisrs.

Imcome Tax
Mo prosisian for income tax has been rised 2 e Trust s exemol from income lax under Die, 50 of thes Incoms Tax
AgpaEgmant Act 1997

Prowisiens

Prowisians ane recognised when the Trust has 8 legal or consiructios abligation, a5 a result of past events, for which s
prabable el an aulllow ol scomsamic hamnsfs wil resul and thal cutllow can be relably moasured, Provisions recognisad
represent the best estimate of the smounts required §o setie the obligation &t the end of reporting peciod,

Comparative Figures
Whene required by fccouting Standards comparative figures: kave been adjusied o conform wilh changes in presentaon lor
the coemant financial yaar,

The Trusl oo 11 May 2000 passad & molcs 10 chasge ila inancial wear nd from 31 Dheoeam ber to 30 Juna, As & conspquance
of this, fhose financial slabsenands ars for the zix months endsd 30 June 2031, The companatind numbars fepansd in Thaas
financlal statemsnts are for e 12 montns ended 39 December 2020,

Trade Roceiwablas and Othor Dablors
Trade receivables and other doblors include amounts due from clients for fees and goods and services provided, from donof

arad any outstanding grant raceipts. Receivabies sxpecied o be colkched within 12 montra of the end of She reporting perod
are classified a4 curnenl ssaebs. Al olher recsivablios are clossfied &8 non-current Baaets.
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HATIOMAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA [NT)
ABH: 60 928 924 603
MOTES TO THE FINANCLAL REPORT FOR THE S0 MOMNTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Bummary of Significant Accounting Policies [Cont.}

Contract Assobs

Caniracl assets are recognised when the Trust has ansfemed goods or services o the cushomer and of complalad requins
perfomuance cisfgatians, bt has yat W aslablish uncomdBeonal dghils 1o conpiderstion, Canlrac assels ore irested as fnancial
a3a8iE bar impairment purposes,

Trade and Mkar Payablss

Tracks ared ciher peyables represant the lebiilies for goods and =ervices recefved by the Tnest during the reporting penod thart
ramain unpaid al the end of the reporting period. Trade payables are recognised at thelr fransacion prica, The balancs i
recognised as g curent liabibty with the emounts roemmally pald within 30 deys of necognica ol e Fatditg.

Camiract LiakiiEhes

Conitrac! liabBligs represant e TrisTs cbligalion o iransfer qu-n-:la Of Services 0o 3 clstorner or comphele requined parformancs
ubligations and ame recognised when a cusbomer pays considaration, or when the Trus! recognises a recefvabie to refiect &
urconditianal rght to-cansideration (whichever is earfier], befora e Trust has translemed the goods of Barvices 1o the cuslomar
and ar compiadad required parfarmances ohlgalicns,

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgemants

The Trust evaliaies estimates and judgemenis inoomparated into the Snancial siatemants bassd on hislorcsl knowiacge and
st available curmen! information, Estimates assume & reasonable expaciation of fiune events and are based on current rands.
and acohamis data, eblained Balh sxbernally and wilhin e Tresi.

Estimabes amd underlyirg assumglions am reviewsd on &n cngaing basis. Revisians Io acoounting estimates are recognised in
Ihe panod in which the esimale is revised # the revision affects only that period or in tha peried of tha revision and fulure
pariads i the revision affects. bath cusmanl and {ulurs pariods,

Key ostimatos
i} bmpairmeni- Ganadal

Tha Tl aceasses impairment al e end of each reporting pemod by evalualing conditions and events specific 1o B Trast that
may ba indicative of impairment trigosars.

Impairment of buifdings, proparty improvements and plant and eguipmment

T Trsat aespssas mpairmend of buldings, properly improvemants and plant and equipment at each reporting date by
evaluating conditions speciic o the Trust and fo the padkcular assat that may e 1o impairmesl. IF an impalmrsan) ingger
axisks, the mcoveranle ameiinl of the stded is datarmingd. This invelves fair vales loet cosls o sel or value=n-use calculations,
which incomorale a number of key estmales and assumptons. Thene wes no provision for impalmaent of bulidings, propany
impravamants and plant and aquipment at 30 June 2021 {20R0; SN,

Impzirment of sccownts meelvabla

The provision for impairmen? of receivabins assessment requins & degres of estimation and judgemenl. The lavel of prowision
5 assessad by tavdng inin account ha recend sAles aparanca, e ageing of eosvabies, hislorical oollection rales srd specific
Enpwiedge of the individual dabbons' firancial position. Prowision for impaimment of receivablas al 20 Jone 2021 ameunied to M
{32k SHill. Durng the six monihs ended 30 Juna 2021, the Trust recognised bad debls sxpenses toialing 51,005 (2020
Sl

(M) Usafid Wves of propery, plant and equiprmand

The Trust meviews the esimaied useful lves of propery improvements ard plant and egquipmen af tve end of aach reporing
pericd, based on the axpaeciad utilly of the asaets.

Traa Trust delermines e eatdmalted desful Fves and related depreciation and smonsation changes for s properdy, plant and
equipmant and fnde s imangible assests. The usefid ives oould change sigrficantly as a resull of Sechnical inncyabions or
zome oiher ewent, The depreciation and amodisation chasge wil increase where the useful Bres an laes than praviously
aptimated lves, of chrically obaclabe or Pon-alralsgic aaaals Whal Faye been abardoned or sold will be wrisn off o written
diwm

Koy judgmants

{ii Periormance Obligations Under AASE 15

To idenlify a periormance obligalion under AASH 15, the promise mus! be sulficiently specific to be abie i deberming whan the
oblgatian is safisfied, Management exercises [ucgement fo dafermine whathar the preeniss i sulSciantly by taking inke sccounl
any candiions spaciiad in e arrangemen], seplicil of implicll. reganding the prorssed goods or services. In making this
asissamen], manapement mchedes Lhe fature { ype, cost fvalue, quantity and the perod of ranster related 1o ha goods or
sanicos promised,



Mote 4

MATIOMAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (NT)
ABN: &0 828 924 03
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL REPORT FOR THE S2{ MONTHS EMDED 30 JUNE 2021

Summary of Significant Accountimg Policies {Cont.)

Fair Vatue of Assats
The Tnast measwes soma of s assets ai fair valoe on either a recwring or nor-recurring basis, depending on the requiremsnts
of Thie applcabde Actounting Standand

Falr value & the price the Trus! would receive (o sel an assef or would hove fo pay to trensfer 2 Babikty In-an onrdery (e
urionced ) ardacion habvean indapanden], Hmm:uhln ““.ﬂﬂﬂw participants at e messurement daie.

#us Fair valus is & marosd hased messune, T clsest aquivalant abservable marked pricing infermation |s used fo delermine far
vl Adjustments o mare] values may be mads having regasd S e characleratics of B spechic aasal. Tha fair valins of
aasals fat ane nol maded in an acle mariet are determined using oo or mone valuation iechniques. Thess valastion
betsmigues maxmeEe, 10 he exent peaskes. e e of cbearvabin market data,

T the exiend possiile, markel indammalion i& adiracied from silher the princpal marcad for the assel {in the market wih 1ho
preabast wolura and leved of acthvity far the asset) or, in the absence of such a marked, the most advaniageous markel available
b thie Trusd 8t the @nd of e mporting parod (is tha market that maximises the roceipt from the sale of the xssct, after faking
ints account irentacion cosls and Iranspon cots),

Far son<financial assets, the f2ir value maasurerment afso takes o account a marke! participar® s abily to use B assel in B
Fighsst and basl wea or f0 sell § o another markal particpan thal would use the asset in s highest and best use.

Economic Dependence

The Trist w5 depandent an Commanwaalll and BT Goyermmen] geanls far The majoanly of 15 revanue 10 opemse BE programs
and business. A1 1he date of this report, the Trust Members have o reason 10 believe thal the above govermmants vl nel
corlirea 1o sappor the Trust. The cperations and fulure success of tha Trust is dependent upan the continued support and
l.'lrld-h'lp iy tha WHMHJE reibers and danore and the achisvement O operaling surpluses Bnd posilve operaiing
cash oS,

Adopticn of New and Revised Accounting Standards

Initial adoption of AATE 2020-04 COVID-19 - Related Remt Concesslons

AASE 20204 Amerdments to Ausiralian Acoounting Standands - Covid-18-Felabed Rent Concession amends S438 16 by
providing & praciicsad expedant that penmits Reseas 10 assass whathar rant conoassions. thal oocur 35 a dinect conseguence of
e COVID-18 pandemic: arsd, IT certain cendiions are med, accaur Tor thass nenl corcesgions as i thay wers mol leass
madifications,

initial adoption of AASE I016-6 Amendments o Australian Accounting Standards - Dafiniien of & Business

AAEE 204 8-B amonds and narows the definition of a business specified in AASE 3 Business Combinations, sinplifying the
dalarmination af whidhar & transeciicn should be ececurrtad for @5 @ business combination or an asset acquisition. Ertities may
also pardarmm a calculation &nd sect o Inaal comain acquisilions: &% Bequinitions of asaes

The standards listed above did nol have any npact on The amounts recegnieed in priar paripds &nd ane nol expastad fa
sigrificantly affect the cormant or fulune periods.
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NATEINAL THUST OF AUSTRALIA [NT)
AN BD 930 B34 603

ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE SB MONTHE ENDED 30 JUNE 3031

Ravamug

Trading activifes

Coat of sales and evanld

Eross profil {loss) on irading activities

Grant Imcome

Oihaor Income

Donaliors

Fundralsirg

Inlerast raceivad
Membership aubscriglions
e Indame

FRerial income

ATO pbkesper

Total Diher Incems

Taotal Rowenue

Expenses

Employen Expenses

Salaries and Wagas
Superammualion

Mowvamenl in Lagve Expanses
Crther Employes Costs:

Tatal Emplayss Exparmas

Cash and Cash Eqguivalonts

CURRENT
Cash at Bank
Tern Dapasit

Total Cash on Hand and a1 Bank
Trade snd Other Reoeivables

CURRENT

Roceivables :

Trade B aceivabies

Lees (Provision for Impaimant of Recalvabios

Total accounts recefvable

Dther Recalvablas :
G5T Receivables {nef)
Ciihar Recennainles

Total Diher Racolvabies

Totsl Current Trade and Other Receivabilas

The Trest's noomal ored? lerm & 30 days.
Mo coflatersl is held aver irade and olher recelvables.

Nebs

15

2021 2020
| §
3z.221 12334
(26,492) (34,115}
5,739 21,784
50,876 538,426
2728 8,744
1,685 10,585
1,138 3.418
1,185 8,518
41,187 i, 01
23,260 48,431
8000 55,100
78,141 143,832
135,846 B50,704
2021 020

L
136,867 170,054
13,056 15,498
(368} 4825
1,474 3000
151,028 153 4467
2021 2020

k- £
260,570 144,009
73,656 458,266
354 526 502,304
2021 2020

$ ]

2,206 121
2,206 1,271
456 2,413
L% 2,876
z821 7,289
117 8,560
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Mote 8

MATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLL (NT)
AN 80 038 924 883

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE S5 BONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2031

Inwnntarkis
CURRENT
Marchandtss af cast
Taotal Invenioriss

Orthigr Currant Assels

CURRENT
Prapayments

Froperty, Plant and Equipmend

Property
Buildings

Building= &l fair value 2021
Praparty Improvamants -
Property Improvements a1 cosl
Less Accumudated depreciation

Totsl Property impeovemenis
Tolad Propery

Plant and Eguipmant :
Plank and oopuiment :

Pland and Equipment al cost
Lass Accumulated caprackation

Tolad Plan! and oquipmenl
Fumisung ard FRngs

Fumigure and Filings at cost
Less Aoosmuabed deprecsston

Tolad Fumitere and Fings
Ofice Exquipmeant -

Office Equipmant &t cost

Less Accmuinted depreciation
Totad Otfice Equipment

Tedal Plant and Equipment

Todal Property, Plant and Eguipmant

2021 2020

§ E

17,854 18,583

17 54 16,583
20 020

i 5

27068 0,289
27,859 BIE8
203 2p20

5 £

£ 931 400 5,551,400
477,73 435 587
(5B, 2460 {0, FAG)
404,470 374,758
B.340.8T0 §,305,158
B4,308 4,207
[35,885) 32577}
18,424 21,732
o6 TE2 23,557
(15,380 14.167)
1,382 6,390
a2 267 X2 aET
{18,228) {12032}
14 038 20,035
43 HE5 51,387
B384, 725 &,357 555

AL 30 Jume 2021, the Trusi Members have performed a Tnst Members' valuation on the buildings reported af fair valee. The
Tt Memben have revisaed e lilks deads of sach propeily cwned by e Tiust and lieve adapbad e Linimpeeus: Capilal
Walug as par e most recand valuation ished by Be WT Valuer General The Trest Membes therefore belioee, that based an the
utility of the stsets, their axisting condition and Be cost of replacemant of (hese azasts, (hal the curmenl Carying
amaumt of the bullkdings ard propesty Improvemancs refects feir i value ot 30 Jung 2021,

Thes properiies sted at Breir i vales al 30 Jone 2021 are 2 Bumell Place, Larmakeyah (fuudil House], 4 Bumel Plass,

Lasrakeyah {(Bumati Housa), 5 Bumet Place, Lamakeyvah (Mines House), 2 Kahlin Avenue, Lamakeyah {Magisimies House), 4
Kahlin Avenoe Lamakeyah {Stahl Garden), 11 Railways Termaos, Pine Cresk, (Museum Building), 11 Steart Terace, Afice
Springs, (Les Hamsan Bulding), 49 Schmid] Sieeal, Tennan] Crask, [Tusworth-Fullwood House) and 37 Diowvers Drive, Naweasiie

‘Watars, (Jones Stona).
Trade and Other Payablos

CURRENT

Tracle Payabias
Accrued Exponses
Oiher Payables
Payroll Lishilties

Tetal Trads and Cihar Payablas

2037 2030
% §
8,957 458
9,758 8,487
na 4643
8,382 T. 13T
26 0ES 18,728

18
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MATIORAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLL [MNT)
BBEM: G0 BZE 524 GO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE 51K MONTHS ENDED 20 JUNE 3031

Cther Current Liskilities 2021 2020
3 5

EURRENT

Contract Liabillies - Granl funded programmes B3,348 -

Total Other Current Lisbilities 83,348 r

Contract kabdiities - mowement in amouns

Batanca Al v Baginning of e yea : .
Addiions: Granis for which performance oblgaticns will only be satisfied
N subsEqUEnt years 3,349 s
Expendad - Granis acquited or uliisad during ihe yess £ -
Closmg balance 3,349 -
Praviaians for Employee Banefits Jlﬂ: 020
5
CURRENT
Prowigion tor Annial Lesva 11,763 12,132
Tolal Provisicna far Employes Banefils: 11,763 12132
Tatal
Anaiyais af loial provisiens: ¥
Opaning balanes at 1 July 2020 12,132
Met provisions used during the year [26%)
Bakanes &t 20 Jupe 2021 11,763

Provision For Employes Benefits
Empioyas provisions represents amaunts aconsed for anrial leanee.

The current porion for e prosision includes the 100l amaunt sctried for anniss Bave ardiemants and The amount acnesed for
lneyg Beevice leave anfdlamants thal have vesied dus o employees having complelod the mouined penod of sarvics, Based on
past experence, the Trusl do=s not expect the full amourl of arnual ledve of jong Serdce leave Dalances daasifed a3 cureni
lialsliSes bo be satiled within tha next 12 monthe, Howawes, thase amaunts mus] be dassiied as curment labiltias sinca the Trust
ciaes not have an onoondéonal nghl o defer the sefilement of thess amowals in e svent amalopess wsh o wme Beir lbave

e lillermierl

The messuismenl snd recogakion crlers Tor srmployess benefits have tean discuasnd in Nota 1igh,

Rassrms g 2020
1 §

Azael Revaleation Resare 5,605, BGa 3 aT6 864

Ganeral Heservos - 575,380

Total Reserves EIEE ﬂ ﬁﬂ E

Movements in Resarves

Ganeral Flesang

Cipening balarce begioning of the Year 476,480 BT B

Trarsdars from (o ) Retsired Eamings (575,38 132,484)

Closing hatance and of the Year - 575,380

ia] Asset Revaluation Resera
The asset revaliation reserve records revalustions of prapesdies owned by (he Tnisl Propa©fies afe recorded 8l values
clatarmingd by ha Mamham Tasiley Valuar Ganeml

b} Genesal Rasarvas |
The genaral resene regresents funds for which the Trust kas designated for a parioular purposs in fature perods.

i
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Mote 14
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NATIONAL TRUST OF AUETRALLA [NT)
ARMN: 8 93E 324 603
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE S0{ MONTHE ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Hoy Management Remunerslian Fior )]

The tokals of remuneralion paid o KMP of the Trus) dating the year

ana a5 folows:
Sman- tamn employmend banolils 38,908
Past employmant benefits amaz
Tatal Key Managemant Romuncration 43 700

Crber Ralated Parly Distloaurs

Crher refaied pariies include clase family members of key management persormal and enties that ara confrolied o jointly

manirabed by hose key managemant personned o individuad or collaciively with thair closs family members.

Trarsactions betesan related parlios are on cammerncial termE and condBions no mone avewabie than thess available to ciber

paries unless cihanwese stabed.

Thene were no olher relsted parly iransactions in 2021 (2020 SNl

Cash Flow information FiFg ) 2020

Mot 5 %
la) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalenls 1o
Statement of Cash Flows:
Cash on hand ard a2 bank 4 354,526 502,304
Taotal caah a5 stated | the Statement of cash fows A54 536 S0Z 308
(k) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operating Activitios
with Current Year Profit {Loss}

Prafi [Loss}) for the coment year (194,520 152, TEE

Nan-cash Mows;

Deprociaton and amorisation expense 18,158 14,637

Gain' {losses) on disposal of property, plart and equipmant - =

Changes in assets and lizbilites:

(increarsajdecrease in Trade and Ciher Recoiables 3,443 &7 253

[Inoreasa)dectanss in Insanionies 11.071) 103

(increasa)dacrease i Cther Sumant Assets (18, 580) (3

Increase!{decresise) in Trade and Oiher Payables T340 (2FE 100}

Ircreaae{decreasa) in Other Liabillies #3349 -

Increase!|decreasa) in Employes Provisions [363] 4 624

Mot cash provided by [used in} operaling sctivilies (102410 LY,
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Mein 13

MATHINAL TRUST OF ALRSTHALLA [NT)
AEN: B0 528 824 602
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE 50X BDNTHE ENDED 30 JUNE 2831

Capiial amd Leasing Commitments: bierd | llﬂi

=) Lusase Commitmomts
Ronfe commtmerds © shord larm sng fow vaiue assehs
Commidied at ie reporiing date but not recognised as Gabiifes, payable:
Within one year . =
Cine R Nive vears L3 =
Moeg e § ysars = =

Tne Trust has mo shoet berm leasss or leases of bow volue as3eds,

i addibion to the prapesties Gal The Trusl owns and bas lle 1o and which afe eponed at ihelr Fair vale in boie 8. the Trust
gl s cushedlanshep of te follosing propertias cithar by lease or @ Crown Loasa in papeatuly, These properfes and 1 Moldinn
Efraot, Danwin, {Rosdmaster Housel, 1 John Skes!, Bormoloals (04 Police S{ation and Bermokoala Beanch DOfce), B Parsons

Sireal, Alica Speings. {Sluarl Town Goalk 59 Rerbank Diive, Katherine South, {'Keede House], Lot 2714 Main Sbeal, Pine
Cmaei, (Staticn Masters Cotinge) and 958 Aadway Terace, Kaltherne, (00 Ralsay Stalion)

The Trust does ned pay eny rent tor their cusooiarsnip of these proparties. As previously noted the Tnest hos adopled the
temporary refief ondes AAEER D088 in relation 1o Peppancorn Leases.

L] Carpital Expendifisre Commibments
The Trust hias ko capital expendilure commBnenis as ol 30 June 2021 (20305,
Contingent Linbillies and Contingent Assets
Tha Trust has po Cordngent Lishiities ns a1 30 June 2021 {2030 : §hi),
Ewants Aler tha Reporting Parlod
The Trusd Membore ame nol awere of any significant svens since the and of ihe reponing penicd thad has significantly affectad, or

ray significaniy alfect the Trusls oparaions, the repuks of thase operations, o tha Trust's stabo of affains in fudure fnancal
RATE,

Trust Detadls

The Regisiersd Office and Principal place of business s

2 Bume#t Place
Lamakeyah NT 0820



HATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (NT)
ABM: 60 928 924 603
DECLARATION BY TRUST MEMBERS
FOR THE 3IX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The Trusi Members have detarmined thal he Trusl s nol & reporting enily and that this speciad purpose Srancial report is prepared in
accardancs win the accounting policies stated in note 1 to the financial stxiemants.

The Trusl Members daclare thal the financdal stalements as sol oul on page 3 fo 21 &fe in acoordance wilh he reguements of the

Hadional Trust of Ausirals [Mordhem Termitany) Amendmant Acl 1088 and with the Ausirabian Charities and Nof for Profls Commisgion Aot
2012 and:

1 Comply with Ausiraiian AccounSng Standards as described in nole 1 0o the inancial staiemants.

2 Give a3 lnoe and fair view of the Ninancial posiion of the Metioral Trust of sustralia (NT} es & 30 June 2021, iis performance and
caah flows for Thia st manis anded on that cate; and

3 Althe dale of (b sietement, Tere ara reasonable grounds o believa that the Trust will be able 1o pay it debis as and when ey
fall dus.

This declaralion & made in sccordance with & resalulion of the Tras! Members and & signed for and on behall of she Thst
Comimlas Mermbars by

|
Claire Kilgariff (T i

Datad - ) \} September 2021
) frotbec)
Malene Biormskoy'(Direcior)

Dated Z Septamber 2021

2
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Leval 2

TCG Cantre

BO Mitchail Street Henin Ectaneds Marshall T [ABN 74 818 258 118} 82 fem of Chartersd Accoumants. It bs affilated wih, but
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i# *e1 B EIE1 5585
W rRxisEmALComLAL Linbithy brribed by = scherms spprowed under Beofessionsé Bandards Legicletion.

Nexia
Edwards Marshall NT

INDEPENDENT AULNTOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL TRUST OF ALSTRALIA [NT)
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
Opinien

‘W Have audited the financal report of Mational Trust of Austealia (NT) [“the Trust'™), which compriges the statemenl
of financial position as at 30 June 2021, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income; statemeant of
changss imeguity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accownting policies, and the declaration by trust members.

In owr opinion, the zccompanymg financial report of Mational Trust of Awustralia (NT), 15 in accordance with the
requirements of Motional Trest of Austrolio (Northern Territong] Amendment Act 1985 and Division 60 of the Australian
Cherities ond Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including:

i, Giving @ true and fair view of the Trust's lingncial pasition as at 30 June 7021 and of its financial perfarmanca
and cash flows for the six manths ended on that date; and

i, Complying with Sustralian Accounting Sfandards to the extent described m Note 1 and Division 60 of the
Austroftion Chorities and Not-for-profits Commission Reguigtion 2013 and Notlong! Trust of Australia
{Northern Terntorg! Amendiment Act 1986,

il the accounts af the Trust have been properly prepared and are In accordancs with the books of account of
tha Trust
Basis for Opinion

‘We conducted aur audit in ecoordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Avditer's Responsibifites for the Awdlt of the Finoncial Report section of our report. We
are independent of the Trust in accordance with the awditor independence requaremeants of the Austrafion Charities
and Nat-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Profassional and Ethical
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants fincleding independence Stendords) (the
Code) that are rebevant o our audit of the financial report in Australla, We have aslsa fulfilled our other ethical
riespansibilities in accordance with the Coda.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our apinion,

Emphasis af Matter - Basls af Accounting

We draw attention to ¥ote 1 to the financial report, which descoribes the besis of accounting. The financial report has
been pregared to assist the National Trust of duestralia [NT) te meeat the requirements of the Notional Trust of Australio
{Worthern Termtory) Amendment Act 1586 and Division 60 of the Australion Charities and Soef-for-profits Commission
Act 2002, As a result, the financial report may nat be suitahle for another purpose. Owr opinien i5 not modified in
respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The financial report of the Trust for the vear ended 31 December 2020 was audited by anothar auditor who expressed
a qualified opinien an the financlal repart on 8 Aprl 2021, Their basis for qualification was:
- ot practical for the Trust 1o establivh sccownting controds ower fon grant income priar te it receipl and
accordingly it is not possible for gur examination to inchede audit proceduras to extend beyond the
amounts recorded in the accounting records of the Trust,

Trust Members' Responsibility for the Flnoscial Report

The Trust Members of the Trust are responsible for the preparation of the financlal report that glves & tree and fair
vigw in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Mote 1 and the Notiomel Trust of
Australip (Nerthern Territory! Amendment Act 1986 and Division 60 of the Austrodfion Charities ond Net-for-prefits
Commissign Act 2012 and is approprate to meet the neads of the members. The Trust Members are also responisible
for such internal control as the divectars determine Is necessary to enzble the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and falr view and i free Ivam material misstatement, whather due o fraud or amor,




IMD EPENDENT AUDITOR' REPORT TO THE M EM BERS OF HATIOMAL TRUST OF AUSTRALA (NT)
REPORT OM THE AUDIT OF THE ANANCAL REPORT ( CONT.)

Trust Members' Resporsibifity for the Financial Re port

I preparing the financial repart, the Trust Members are responsible for asse ssing the Trust’'s shility to continue asa
zoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alte mative butto doso.

Auditor's Resporsibilty for the Andit of the CinanciolReport

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboutwhether the financial re port as awhole is free from material
misstaternent, whether due to-fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that include s our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing standards will always dete ot a material misstate ment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually orinthe agzregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decision s of use rs taken on the basis of thisfinandal re port.

As partof an audit inaccordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise profe ssional judzement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstate ment of the financial report, whether due tofraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstate ment resulting from
fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, orthe ove rride of inte mal contral.

&  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but ot for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the effectiveness of the
Trust's intemal control.

# Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the dire ctors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trust Members' use of the going conce i basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast sighnificant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we concdude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial report ar, if such disclosures are inade quate, to modify our opinion. Qur cancusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, futlure events or conditions may cause
the Trustto'cease to'continueg asa gaing concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
wehether the financial report represents the underying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We cammunicate with the Trust Members and management re garding, among other matters, the planne dscope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
ide ntify during our audit.
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Mexia Edwards Marshall NT
Chartered Accountants

[
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Moel Clifford
Partner

Dated: 28 September 2021




1
U
il 2

1 .

% "I-

I ilﬁuf‘” 1L
ll.g'F_.- N -

o



